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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)
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in Hong Kong
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Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

Cayman Islands Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
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P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

Principal Banker

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Wuxi Xi Shan Sub-branch

Ying Bin North Road

Dong Ting Town

Xi Shan District

Wouxi City, the PRC
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ETEREREEBTMED

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of China
Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Limited (the “Company”),
I am pleased to present the audited annual results of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2014.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
nonwoven fabric products used in automotive interior decoration
parts and other parts, trading of rubber and garment accessories.
The Group also deploys financial resource to securities investment
and investment fund to achieve earnings in the form of capital
appreciation and income from dividends.

Manufacture and sale of nonwoven fabric
products

Manufacture and sale of nonwoven fabric products is the core
business of the Group. The Group manufactures its products with
single layer or multiple layers of nonwoven fabric in accordance
with specific requirements and standards of different customers.
Most of the customers of nonwoven fabric products are primary
manufacturers and suppliers of automotive parts in the PRC. The
majority of the Group's products are further processed by these
customers in order to make different automotive parts such as
floor, head lining, seat cover, parcel tray, trunk, luggage-side trim,
hubcap and car-mat, which are of different characteristics and are
to be applied for different usages in passenger vehicles.

According to the statistics released from China Association of
Automobile Manufacturers (“CAAM"), the production and sales
of passenger vehicles in the PRC were approximately 19,920,000
units and 19,700,000 units respectively during 2014, representing
an increase of approximately 10.2% and 9.9%. These growth
in passenger vehicles market resulted in a stable demand for
automotive interior decoration materials of the Group during
2014. However, as a result of increasing competition in the
industries, there is an decrease trend in average selling prices of
certain nonwoven fabric products of the Group since last quarter
of 2014.

China Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Limited .
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ITEREREEEBRED N (A

Supply and procurement operation

The Group commenced its business of rubber trading since 2012
for the purposes to explore the potential to offer the products to
upstream manufacturers in the automotive industry. Operationally,
the Group imported raw rubber and sold to customers and traders
in the PRC. The international market price of rubber decreased
during 2014 and its quoted price was varied according to the
tendency of the commodities markets. To manage the risk, the
Group mainly carried out that business in back-to-back model
and since the significant decrease in price of top commodities,
crude oil, in the second half of 2014, the Group only accepted the
higher profit margin orders with lower default risk and caused a
decrease in revenue of that business.

Since the second quarter of 2013, the Group diversified into the
business of trading of garment accessories. The products of trading
of garment accessories are mainly nylon tape, polyester tape and
polyester string. The major customers of that business are the
Hong Kong buying office of overseas garment manufacturers and
the major suppliers are the manufacturer of garment accessories
in the PRC. The business of trading of garment accessories
continuously generated a stable income stream to the Group
during 2014.

Since the last quarter of 2013, the Group downsized the business
operation of trading of food products but it still could not
contribute positively to the financial result of the Group. After
careful evaluation of that business, the Group discontinued it
during the first quarter of 2014.

Transfer of listing

The Group has been successfully transferred listing from the
Growth Enterprise Market to the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 25
August 2014. The Board believes that the transfer of listing will
enhance the profile of the Company and increase the trading
liquidity of the shares of the Company and recognitions by
potential investors. The Board considers that the listing of the
shares of the Company on the Main Board will be beneficial to the
future growth and business development of the Group.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue for the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2013 was illustrated as follows:

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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Nonwoven fabric for use in automobiles AR EMES M
— Sales of automotive floor carpets — AEMBMIEE 95,223 108,117
— Sales of other automotive parts — HihRBEHHIHEE 74,539 80,610
Sales of rubber BRBHHEE 153,535 332,668
Sales of garment accessories PR AR B 1 B0 $5 & 33,954 20,923
Sales of food products RmiiHE = 1,059
357,251 543,377

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s revenue
decreased to approximately RMB357.3 million, compared to
approximately RMB543.4 million in 2013, representing a decrease
of approximately 34.3%. The decrease in the Group’s revenue was
mainly attributable to the decrease in revenue of sales of rubber.

Gross profit

The gross profit of the Group maintained stable in 2014. Trading
of rubber requires low value-added services and therefore its
gross profit margin is generally lower than the business of
manufacturing. The decrease in revenue in the business of rubber
trading caused an increase in profit margin of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2014 to approximately 14.0%.

Other income

The Group's other income decreased by approximately RMB13.5
million from approximately RMB25.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2013 to approximately RMB11.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2014. The decrease was mainly due to
the decrease in fair value gain on held-for-trading investments
by approximately RMB14.8 milli
held-for-trading inves
mainly comprised of
Exchange of Hon
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ITEREREEEBRED N (A

Share of loss of an associate

The Group’s associated company is engaged in the production
and sale of polyester fibers used in automobiles in the PRC. The
associated company incurred loss during the period under review
because the factory was just established during the second half
of 2013 and the production facilities took time to improve the
production efficiency to the optimal production level.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses increased by approximately
RMB2.4 million from approximately RMB15.5 million in 2013 to
approximately RMB17.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2014. The increase was mainly attributable to the increase in the
Group’s corporate expenses in relation to the transfer of listing of
shares of the Company during 2014.

Profit attributable to the owners of the
Company

The profit attributable to the owners of the Company was
approximately RMB25.9 million for the year of 2014 compared
with approximately RMB43.0 million for the corresponding period
of 2013. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in fair
value gain on held-for-trading investments.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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OUTLOOK

Although CAAM forecasts the sale of passenger vehicles in the
PRC will increase by 8% in 2015, the Board expects that the year
2015 will be a challenging year for the business of manufacture
and sale of nonwoven products as the continuously increase in
production costs for maintaining competitiveness and enhancing
safety requirements to cope with the development of the
automotive industry. To maintain its income stream, the Group will
still deploy its resources on:

(1) upgrading the production lines in order to improve the
production efficiency;

(2) installing new machineries to suit the customers’ varying
requirements and demands on high-end products;

(3) conducting research and development to keep up with
the latest technological trends in relation to product
specifications; and

(4) strengthening the quality control systems to retain customer
loyalty and reinforce the Group’s reputation in the nonwoven
fabric industry in the PRC.

Although trading of rubber yielded stable return, the increasing
risk of volatility in rubber price since the deterioration in price of
crude oil, the Group will be cautious in accepting orders to avoid
any downside exposure.

In order to have a better use of the Group’s fund, the Group
increased its financial resource on the business of securities
investment and investment fund, and recorded a gain arising
from fair value changes of held-for-trading investment during the
period under review. The Board will closely monitor the portfolio
of investment to reduce the risks during the unexpected market
fluctuations in the future.

Going forward, with a view to achieving better return and

enhancing the expansion of the Group, the Group will look for
potential investment opportunities to diversify its business scope.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ITEREREEEBRED N (A

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Current assets mBEE
Current liabilities mEAaE
Current ratio MBI K

The current ratio of the Group at 31 December 2014 was 4.22
times as compared to that of 2.52 times at 31 December 2013.
It was mainly resulted from the net proceeds of placing of new
shares of the Company during 2014.

At 31 December 2014, the Group’s gearing ratio (represented
by totals of bank borrowings and bank overdrafts divided by
summation of total bank borrowings, bank overdrafts and equity)
amounted to approximately 10.2% (2013: 16.5%).

TREASURY POLICY

The Group generally financed its operations by internal cash
resources and bank financing. On 26 September 2014, the
Company placed and allotted 230,400,000 shares at HK$0.38
to independent investors. The net proceeds of the placing was
approximately RMB67.2 million.

At 31 December 2014, cash and bank balances of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB69.4 million (2013: RMB51.5
million), and approximately RMB42.4 million (2013: RMB35.5
million) of which are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
United States dollars. Taking into account the Group’s cash
reserves and recurring cash flows from its operations, the Group’s
financial position is stable and healthy.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Except 230,400,000 shares of the Company were issued and
allotted on 26 September 2014, there has been no material
change in the capital structure of the Group since 31 December
2013.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

At 31 December 2014, there was no significant investment held by
the Group (2013: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

There was no material acquisitions or disposal of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies by the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014.

PLEDGE ON ASSETS

At 31 December 2014, the Group's buildings and investment
property with a carrying amounts of approximately RMB11.3
million (2013: RMB11.7 million), prepaid land lease payments
with a carrying amounts of approximately RMB2.8 million
(2013: RMB6.1 million), bank deposits with a carrying amounts
of approximately RMB 6.1 million (2013: RMB6.1 million) and
properties provided by a director of a subsidiary were pledged to
banks for bank borrowings and bank overdrafts.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

At 31 December 2014, the Group employed a total of 178
employees (2013: 173). The remuneration policy of the employees
of the Group was set up by the Board on the basis of their
experience, qualifications and competence. Other employees’
benefits include contributions to statutory mandatory provident
funds, and social insurance together with housing provident funds
to its employees in Hong Kong and the PRC respectively.

A remuneration committee was set up for, inter alia, reviewing
the Group’s remuneration policy and structure for all directors and
senior management of the Group.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my sincere gratitude to all of our customers, business
partners and investors for their support and trust towards the
Group. Further, | would like to express my sincere thanks to our
Directors and employees for their dedications and contributions to
the Group.

By order of the Board

Zhuang Yuejin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 March 2015

China Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Limited .
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERSREEENBEEER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin, aged 52, is the Chairman of the Board, Chief
Executive Officer of the Company and one of the founders of the
Group. He was appointed as an executive Director on 12 April
2010. He has over 12 years of experience in the nonwoven textile
industry. He is responsible for formulating the Group's corporate
strategy, overseeing its production operations and the overall
steering of the Group’s strategic development.

Mr. Zhuang graduated from Xiamen Fisheries College in 1981
and was approved as a qualified engineer by the Intermediate
Level Adjudication Committee of Xiamen City Marine Engineering
Department in 1990. From 1997 to 2001, Mr. Zhuang was the
director and the general manager of Xiamen Marine Industries
(Group) Co., Limited, a PRC incorporated company and was
previously listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wong Ho Yin, aged 45, was appointed as an executive
Director and company secretary on 30 June 2011. He graduated
from Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Master of Corporate
Governance Degree and a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Accountancy.
He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of both the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wong was the financial controller
and company secretary of a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, namely Ching Hing (Holdings) Limited
(currently known as China Household Holdings Limited) (Stock
Code: 692), from September 2006 to October 2010. He has
extensive experience in accounting and corporate compliance.

Ms. Xiao Suni, aged 31, was appointed as an executive Director
on 14 October 2014. She has over 8 years of experience in the
field of international trading and marketing. She holds a Bachelor
of Arts degree from Nanjing Army Command College, the PRC
with major in English. She worked in door-window manufacturing
industry in China after her graduation in 2006. Since 2011,
she worked for a door-window manufacturer as foreign trade
manager, in which her responsibilities focused on overall
management of foreign sales and marketing.
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Mak Wai Ho, aged 42, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 9 September 2011. He was graduated
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology with
a Bachelor degree in Business Administration in Finance. He
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom and a practising member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is a
practising certified public accountant and has more than 17 years
of experience in finance, accounting and auditing.

Mr. Mak is currently an independent non-executive director of
Xinhua Winshare Publishing and Media Co., Ltd., (Stock code:
811) and was the company secretary and financial controller of
Kong Sun Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 295) from September
2005 to November 2009.

Mr. Feng Xueben, aged 67, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 12 April 2010. Mr. Feng was approved
as a qualified engineer specialising in textile machinery design by
the Textile Industry Department of the People’s Republic of China
in 1989. Since 2003, Mr. Feng has been the chief engineer of
Wouxi Jiayuan Nonwovens Technology Research Institute.

Mr. Feng was an independent director of Fujian Nanfang Textile
Co., Ltd (Stock Code: 600483), a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, from June 2002 to May 2008. He was the deputy
director of Nonwoven Textile Machinery Professional Committee
of China Textile Machinery Association from 2007 to 2009. Since
February 2010, Mr. Feng has also been an independent non-
executive director of CECEP Costin New Materials Group Limited
(Stock Code: 2228), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

Ms. Sung Kwan Wun, aged 49, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 19 August 2013. Ms. Sung engaged
in import and export industry for more than 25 years. She held
management positions in several trading companies and was
responsible for regional marketing strategy and internal staff
training. Ms. Sung has extensive knowledge in corporate operation
management, and in marketing in the PRC and Europe. Moreover,
she is experienced in investing in real estate and commodity
futures.

China Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Limited .
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Wang Haiying, aged 45, has been the deputy general
manager of Joystar Wuxi since 2007 and is responsible for
overseeing the production process and quality control of the
Group.

Ms. Wang graduated from Wuhan Institute of Textile Engineering
(currently known as Wuhan Textile University) in 1994, specialising
in textile engineering. She has extensive experience in the
industrial use textile industry and joined the Group as the head of
quality control department of Joystar (Wuxi) Automotive Interior
Decoration Co., Ltd. (“Joystar Wuxi") in 2004.

Mr. Han Zhiqing, aged 61, has been the deputy general manager
of Joystar Wuxi since 2004 and is responsible for coordinating the
technological development and mechanical support for the Group.

Mr. Han graduated from Shanghai Wool and Jute Textile Company
Workers' University in 1982, specialising in woolen textile. Mr.
Han has over 10 years of extensive experience in the industrial use
textile industry.

Ms. Wu Danping, aged 40, is the manager of the accounting
department of Joystar Wuxi. Ms. Wu is responsible for the
financial reporting and the management of the accounting and
finance department of Joystar Wuxi.

Ms. Wu obtained the Certificate of Accounting Professional
issued by the Jiangsu Province Department of Finance and the
Qualification Certificate of Specialty and Technology with specialty
in accountancy conferred by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC in
1997 and 2006 respectively.

In 2008, Ms. Wu completed an online diploma programme in
accountancy from China Agricultural University. She has 17 years
of experience in financial accounting and reporting.

Mr. Wu Ganghua, aged 44, is the manager of the sales and
marketing department of Joystar Wuxi. He is responsible for the
sales and marketing operation of Joystar Wuxi.

In 1990, Mr. Wu graduated from Jiangsu Province Wuxi City
College of Mechanical Manufacturing (currently known as Wuxi
Institute of Technology). He was qualified as an assistant engineer
in mechanical manufacturing by Wuxi City Professional Title
ittee in 1996. Mr. Wu further obtained a graduation
ormal University in 1999. Mr. Wu joined
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERHME

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report
for the year ended 31 December 2014. This report highlights the
key corporate governance practices of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance to protect the interests of the shareholders
of the Company. The Company’s corporate governance practices
are based on principles and code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (“Code”) in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. Except for the deviation from Code provision A.2.1
and A.6.7, the Company complied with the Code for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Zhuang Yuejin is the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Such
deviation from Code provision A.2.1 is deemed appropriate as it is
considered to be more efficient to have one single person as the
Chairman of the Company as well as to discharge the executive
functions of a chief executive officer, and it provides the Group
with strong and consistent leadership in the development and
execution of long term business strategies. The Board believes
that the balance of power and authority is adequately ensured by
the operations of the Board which comprises highly experienced
individuals. There are three independent non-executive Directors
on the Board. All of them possess adequate independence and
therefore the Board considers the Company has achieved balance
and provided sufficient protection of its interests.

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive
Directors should attend general meetings of the Company. Owing
to other business engagements, two independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Feng Xueben and Ms. Sung Kwan Wun, were
unable to attend the general meetings of the Company held on 20
June 2014.
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CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings as set out in Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry with all
Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied
with the code of conduct and the required standard of dealings
concerning securities transactions by the Directors for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At 31 December 2014, the Board comprises three executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Ho Yin
Ms. Xiao Suni

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Mak Wai Ho
Mr. Feng Xueben
Ms. Sung Kwan Wun

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and
strategic planning experience and/or expertise relevant to the
business of the Group. The biographical details of the Directors
and the relationship among the members of the Board are set
out in the “Biographical Information of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 11 to 12 of this report.

Generally, the responsibilities of the Board include:
3 Formulation of overall strategic development of the Group;

o Monitoring the financial performance and internal control of
the Group’s business operations;

isitions, investments, disposal of assets or any
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o Communications with key stakeholders;
o Recommendation and declaration of any interim and final
dividends

Executive Directors are responsible for running the Group and
executing the strategies adopted by the Board. The Board
delegates day-to-day activities to the management with
department heads responsible for different aspects of the business.
The non-executive Directors serve the relevant function of bringing
independent judgment on the development, performance and risk
management of the Group through their contributions in board
meetings. They are also serving on remuneration committee,
nomination committee and audit committee.

During the year, the Board complies with the requirement of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors and at least one of them has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Company has received from
each independent non-executive Director an annual confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and the Company considers all the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

The Board normally has four regular meetings a year at quarterly
interval and meets as and when required to discuss the overall
business, development strategy, operations and financial reporting
of the Company. The Directors can attend meetings in person or
through other means of electronic communication in accordance
with the Company's articles of association. During the year ended
31 December 2014, nine Board meetings and one general meeting
were held. The following table shows the attendance of individual
Directors at the meetings held during the year:

No. of Attendance

General Board
Members meetings meetings
Executive Directors
Mr. Zhuang Yuejin 11 8/9
Mr. Wong Ho Yin 11 9/9
Ms. Xiao Suni (appointed on 14 October 2014) 0/0 0/2
Mr. Pak Ping (resigned on 9 October 2014) 11 6/7

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Mak Wai Ho

Mr. Feng Xueben

Ms. Sung Kwan Wun

China Automotive Interior Decoration Hold
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The Directors will receive details of agenda and minutes of
committee meetings in advance of and after each Board meeting
respectively. The company secretary will distribute relevant
documents to the Directors in a timely manner to enable the
Directors to make informed decisions on matters to be raised at
the Board meetings. All Directors have access to the advice and
services of the company secretary who is responsible for ensuring
the procedures of the Board meetings are complied with and
advising the Board on compliance matters.

In addition, the Company has maintained a procedure for the
Directors to seek independent professional advice, in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense in discharging their
duties to the Company. Moreover, the company secretary
prepares minutes of the Board meetings and keeps records of
matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board meetings.
The company secretary also keeps the minutes of the Board
meetings, which are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin is the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company. Such deviation from Code provision A.2.1 is
deemed appropriate as it is considered to be more efficient to
have one single person as the Chairman of the Company as
well as to discharge the executive functions of a chief executive
officer, and it provides the Group with strong and consistent
leadership in the development and execution of long term business
strategies. The Board believes that the balance of power and
authority is adequately ensured by the operations of the Board
which comprises highly experienced individuals. There are three
independent non-executive Directors on the Board. All of them
possess adequate independence and therefore the Board considers
the Company has achieved balance and provided sufficient
protection of its interests.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

According to the Company’s articles of association, one-third of
the Directors are required to retire from office at each annual
general meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once in every three years. A Director
inted since the most recent annual general meeting shall hold
i ext annual general meeting and shall then be
independent non-executive Directors
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to Code provision A.6.5, all Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. All the Directors
also understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed to participate any suitable
training or read relevant materials in order to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Company has received from
each Director a confirmation of their participation in continuous
professional development by attending training course or reading
relevant materials on the topics related to corporate governance
and regulations.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the year, the Board adopted a board diversity policy setting
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company
considered diversity of board members can be achieved through
consideration of a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee on 13
September 2010 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code. The primary duties of the remuneration committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the policy and
structure for all Directors and senior management, reviewing
the terms of remuneration packages, determining the award
of bonuses and considering the grant of options under the
share option scheme of the Company. At 31 December 2014,
the remuneration committee comprises one executive Director,
namely, Mr. Zhuang Yuejin and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Mak Wai Ho (chairman of the remuneration
committee) and Ms. Sung Kwan Wun.

During the year, four meetings was held by the remuneration
committee to discuss, among other things, the remuneration policy
of the Group and determine the remuneration of the Directors.
The following table shows the attendance of individual members
at the meetings held during the year:

Members No. of Attendance
Executive Director
Mr. Zhuang Yuejin 3/4

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Mak Wai Ho 4/4
Ms. Sung Kwan Wun 4/4

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee on 13
September 2010 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code. The primary duties of the nomination committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board,
making recommendations to the Board regarding candidates
to fill vacancies on the Board, assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors and making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors
and succession planning for Directors. The nomination committee
comprises one executive Director, namely Mr. Zhuang Yuejin
(chairman of the nomination committee), and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Mak Wai Ho and Mr. Feng
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During the year, two meetings was held by the nomination
committee to, among other things, review the structure, size and
composition of the board, assess the independence of each of the
independent non-executive Directors, formulate the board diversity
policy and recommend to the board for approval. The nomination
committee reviewed the board diversity policy to ensure its
effectiveness and considered the Group achieved the policy
since its adoption. The following table shows the attendance of
individual members at the meeting held during the year:

Members No. of Attendance
Executive Director

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin 2/2
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Mak Wai Ho 2/2
Mr. Feng Xueben 2/2

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 13 September
2010 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Code. The primary duties of the audit committee are, among other
things, to review and supervise the financial reporting process
and internal control system of the Group. At 31 December 2014,
the audit committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Mak Wai Ho (chairman of the audit
committee), Mr. Feng Xueben and Ms. Sung Kwan Wun.

During the year, four meetings were held by the audit committee,
two of which was with the attendance of external auditors. The
following table shows the attendance of individual members at the
meetings held during the year:

Members No. of Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Mak Wai Ho 4/4
Mr. Feng Xueben 3/4
Ms. Sung Kwan Wun 4/4

During the year, the audit committee, among other things,
reviewed the quarterly, interim and annual reports as well as
result announcements before submission to the Board. The audit
committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance with
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal requirements
in review of the Company’s quarterly, interim and annual reports
as well as result announcements. The audit committee also
reviewed the Company’s financial controls, internal control
risk management systems and make recommendation to the
on the re-appointment of the external auditors.

China Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Limited .
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the Code provision D.3.1.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, continuous professional development of Directors,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Listing Rules, and
the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The audit committee is responsible for considering the
appointment of the external auditors and also reviews any non-
audit functions performed by the external auditors for the Group,
including whether such non-audit functions could lead to any
potential material adverse effect on the Group. During the year,
the auditors performed the work of statutory audit for the year of
2014. For the year ended 31 December 2014, the remuneration
payable and paid to the auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited were as follows:

EZIRT
B LR

Audit services
Non-audit services

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining an adequate
and effective internal control system to safeguard the Company’s
assets against unauthorised use or disposition, and to protect the
interests of shareholders of the Company.

The audit committee assumes the overall responsibility for
reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the Group’'s internal
control system.

During the year, the Board has discussed and reviewed the
relevant proposals made by senior management in order to
ensure an adequate and effective system of internal control. The
, through the audit committee, has conducted a review of

i of the internal control system of the Company
ear ended 31 December 2014, which
inancial, operational and
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
ERERRE (&)

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company assists the Board by
ensuring good information flow within the Board and that Board
policy and procedures are followed. The company secretary is
also responsible for advising the Board on governance matters.
As an employee of the Company, Mr. Wong Ho Yin, the company
secretary of the Company, has undertaken not less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training to update his skills and knowledge
in 2014.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Procedure for nominating a new Director

Pursuant to Article 83(2) of the articles and association of
the Company (the “Articles”), subject to the Articles and the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the Company may by
ordinary resolution elect any person to be a Director either to fill
a casual vacancy on the Board, or as an addition to the existing
Board.

Procedure for convening an extraordinary
general meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more shareholder
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition and such
meeting shall be held within 2 months from the date of deposit of
the requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

Procedure for sending enquires to the Board

Shareholders may send written enquiries or requests in respect of
their rights to the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong and for the attention of the Company Secretary.

China Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Limited .
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has established a range of communication
channels between itself and its shareholders, and investors. These
include the publication of annual and interim reports, notices,
announcements, circulars and constitutional documents, the
Company's website at www.joystar.com.hk and meetings with
investors and analysts.

The Company encourages all shareholders to attend the annual
general meetings to stay informed of the Group’s strategy and
goals. It provides an opportunity for direct communication
between the Board and its shareholders. The chairman of the
meeting explains the detailed procedures for conducting a poll and
then answers any questions from shareholders. The poll results
are published on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Board does not aware of any changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014, which give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Group. The auditors of the Company is responsible to form
an independent opinion based on the audit, on the financial
statements prepared by the Directors and report the opinion solely
to the shareholders of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
nonwoven fabric products used in automotive interior decoration
parts and other parts, trading of rubber and garment accessories.

RESULTS AND FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2014 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 33 and 34.

The state of affairs of the Group and of the Company at 31
December 2014 are set out in the consolidated statement of
financial position and the statement of financial position on pages
35 to 37 respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are
set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 21 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of financial results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group are set out in the section headed “Summary of
Financial Information” on page 128 in this report.

RESERVES

The movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2014 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 38. The movements in the reserves of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2014 are set
out in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2014, the Company’s reserve available for
distribution to owners of the Company comprising share premium
account amounted to approximately RMB55,060,000 (2013:
RMB6,631,000).
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DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2014.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 39.0% (2013: 33.3%)
of the total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer
accounted for approximately 11.6% (2013: 10.6%) of total sales.
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers in aggregate
accounted for approximately 24.0% (2013: 41.6%) of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 6.0% (2013: 12.5%) of total
purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders of
the Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers during
the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin

Mr. Wong Ho Yin

Ms. Xiao Suni (appointed on 14 October 2014)
Mr. Pak Ping (resigned on 9 October 2014)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Mak Wai Ho

Mr. Feng Xueben
Ms. Sung Kwan Wun

t to Article 83(3) and Article 84(1) of the Company’'s

iation, Mr. Wong Ho Yin, Ms. Xiao Suni, Mr. Mak
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical information of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 11 to 13 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors, including those proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting, has a service
agreement which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Board on the basis of their experience, qualifications and
competence.

The remuneration of the Directors of the Company are reviewed
by the remuneration committee of the Company and approved
by the Board, having regard to the relevant Director’s experience,
responsibility, workload and the time devoted to the Group; the
Company's operating results and comparable market statistics.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest

paid individuals in the Group are set out in Notes 14 and 15 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

So far as known to the Directors, at 31 December 2014, the
interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executives
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO")) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and/or short positions of which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of SFO) or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (“Model Code”), were
as follows:

Long positions in shares of the Company

Name of Directors Capacity and nature of interest

Espf SO RERNME

Beneficial owner

BEmEAA

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin
GERRME S A

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2014, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or of any other body corporate
granted to any Directors or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors,
their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age to
acquire such rights in the Company or any body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES OR UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

Save as disclosed under the section “DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES" INTEREST IN SECURITIES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES” on page 27 of this report, at 31 December 2014,
the Directors of the Company were not aware of any persons who
had, or was deemed to have, interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company in accordance with the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO; or be recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTOR’S
INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the
Directors, the controlling shareholder and their respective close
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) that compete or
may compete with the business of the Group and any other
conflict of interest which any such person has or may have with
the Group during the year.

INTEREST IN COMPETING

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in section “DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTEREST IN SECURITIES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES”
on page 27 of this report, at no time during the year was the
Company, or its subsidiaries, or its fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of the Company
or any other body corporate.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest
practicable date prior to issue of this report, the Company has
maintained the sufficient public float under the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, except for those disclosed in Note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group had no material
transactions with its related parties.

The Directors conducted review of the related party transactions
of the Group during the year and were not aware any transaction
requiring disclosure of connected transactions in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2014 are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Particulars of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group are set
out in Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands which oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its
existing shareholders.
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CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code. Having
made specific enquiry with all Directors, the Company confirmed
that all Directors have complied with the code of conduct and the
required standard of dealings concerning securities transactions by
the Directors during the year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There has not been significant events took place subsequent to 31
December 2014.

AUDITORS

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditor, HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Zhuang Yuejin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 March 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B B ET RS

B &+t F oo A A F
HL Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF E=i4
CHINA AUTOMOTIVE INTERIOR DECORATION HOLDINGS LIMITED FESEAMEEERAARRE
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability) (RAESESEMKZIMNERRAF)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China ZARKHEMCDEZHNREBEFI27TEFRATER
Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Limited (the “Company”) #iEBERAR(ERF D REWE QAR (HKEAE
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set [HHE])WLEEMERE  EFHAR T —F
out on pages 33 to 127, which comprise the consolidated and +-A=1+—HHGARARPTBRIE BEX
Company statements of financial position as at 31 December BIFFEMNGABEMEMEmMKER  GARER
2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other ZEBERLERERER  UREASHERBRE
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in M E/EIER -

equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year

then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ESHGESMERRERENER
CONSOLIDATED FINANICIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation BARBZEEEBEREELSTMASEBNESLM
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view BHREZEBIREB RGN EEZERTE  wRRE
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards EBEHBAFERMGATBRE  UREFEER
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants AMNENEBRIEES - AEREEGAMEHRE
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies BAFAEBPREGERERMEBAEARERERLL
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine

is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY BB B

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated ZAZERMMNELERBEAZBMNBZEZSEE
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion BIMEAREER - WIRBE T AT i E B E I G
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms {ZRIEEBRERENZHMNOER - Britt 2o K
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume ¥R&ERIEEAMEH - AAZBEIM AR AREARNR
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for [AfE{AIE A LB FSHAES T - AL R E
the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance HEEFTMASEMENETBZEEREITERX - 18
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong ZSEAKTK  RZHMABTEBIRTHT
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards JARFHEIRETEZ  UEEBRTELREMERERE
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and & FA IAIE A SRR ©

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

FEAEANEBERAT —B-NEER
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors’ consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2014 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai, Alex
Practising Certificate Number: P05029

Hong Kong, 30 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROF S
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REREBEREMEZEHKRER

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—F—mFE+ A=+ HIFE

2014 2013

—F-mF —F=F

Note RMB’'000 RMB"000

Biat AR¥ET T ARETIT

Revenue A 8 357,251 543,377
Cost of sales $HERK K (307,113) (492,565)
Gross profit EF 50,138 50,812
Other income Hiblg A 9 11,864 25,362
Selling and distribution costs $HE KD A AN (9,126) (9,020)
Share of loss of an associate FE(G B = N R E 18 22 (2,721) (1,371)
Administrative expenses THEHEX (17,937) (15,520)
Profit from operations KRR 10 32,218 50,263
Finance costs B & Bk N 11 (2,708) (2,637)
Profit before tax BREL AR R 29,510 47,626
Income tax expense ISR 2 (3,630) (4,582)

Profit for the year attributable to the Z&R2QF#EHE AEGEFEELER

owners of the Company 25,880 43,044




REBRBEREMEEKERE)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—F—mFE+ A=+ HIFE

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year, net of income tax:

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

Total other comprehensive income/
(loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income for the
year attributable to the owners of
the Company

Earnings per share

— Basic

— Diluted

FEERR

FEHMEEmRE (HA)
MBRFABHE -

HETEHSBMEREN
HE

BEBINERZERZHE

FEAMP2EKE (FIE)
e

FAREEAEEFERA
Wz

BREF

— &K

— 8

Note
HtaF

13

13

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

2014 2013
—Z2-mF —F=F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®ETR AREFT
25,880 43,044
341 (2,218)

341 (2,218)
26,221 40,826
RMB RMB
AR# AREE

2.1 cents 7 3.8 cents o

2.1 cents o

3.8 cents




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mE M B R&R

At 31 December 2014
R-B—mFE+_H=+—H

2014 2013
—ZET-MF —FT—=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bt AR®ET R AREET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MRE 18 45,661 45,843
Investment properties HEWE 19 4,424 =
Prepaid land lease payments TEf LA E IR 20 2,771 2,844
Deferred tax assets BREBIBEE 38 1,247 1,247
Interest in an associate REtE N BRI EDR 22 6,114 4,895
Goodwill GRS 23 51,099 51,099
111,316 105,928
Current assets REBEE
Prepaid land lease payments TER T ERIE 20 73 73
Inventories FE 24 15,896 21,826
Trade receivables EUE 5 k38 25 86,755 75,962
Note receivables A ES 6,037 13,108
Prepayments, deposits and other TERFIAE - e REM
receivables FE U FRIE 26 43,614 26,027
Held-for-trading investments BIEEERE 27 68,486 27,141
Pledged bank deposit ERBRITIF 28 6,137 6,114
Cash and bank balances Re RRITHER 29 69,421 51,474
296,419 221,725
Total assets EEHAR 407,735 327,653
Equity R
Capital and reserves attributable AATEEABEER
to the owners of the Company R f#E
Share capital N 30 113,062 94,829

& 220,058

333,120




mEMBRRR(H)

At 31 December 2014
R-B—mFE+_H=+—H

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Bank borrowings

Current liabilities
Trade payables
Derivative financial liability
Accruals and other payables
Bank borrowings
Bank overdrafts
Promissory note
Tax payable

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

afE
FRBEE

RITER

RBAE
B SR
TEERARE

FERT &R REA R R

RITEK
RITEX
ESNES
e B IR

BEAE

EakAEAE

REBEEFH

REERRBAE

Approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2015 and signed

on its behalf by:

Zhuang Yuejin
HRRE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

Note
Bfat

35

33
32

I8 34

35
36
37

2014 2013
—E-NF —_F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T
4,400 =
22,174 20,323
1,000 S
10,368 16,189
30,500 29,055
2,908 2,959
- 15,456
3,265 3,948
70,215 87,930
74,615 87,930
407,735 327,653
226,204 133,795
337,520 239,723

R-ZE-RAF=-A=+THAEEFSHRELATIIA

TREEE




STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B AR L AR

At 31 December 2014
R-B—mFE+_H=+—H

2014 2013
=E-IF =F—=
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
Biat AR®ETR AREFIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Investments in subsidiaries NHTBARHIRE 21 50,022 50,022
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and deposits BN FIE RS 26 217 62
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG B 21 129,905 78,280
Cash and bank balances B RIRTTER 29 1,451 1,521
131,573 79,863
Total assets EEHRERE 181,595 129,885
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable to the ZATHEAABLEERRHE
owners of the Company
Share capital N 30 113,062 94,829
Reserves i 31 68,177 19,516
Total equity EREARE 181,239 114,345
LIABILITIES aE
Current liabilities HREBaE
Accruals and other payables Bt B R R H b ENRE 34 356 340
Amounts due to subsidiaries AR ENGIE S 21 = 15,200
Total liabilities EEAE 356 15,540
Total equity and liabilities ERREEAE 181,595 129,885
Net current assets REBEETFE 131,217 64,323
Total assets less current liabilities HEERTBEE 181,239 114,345

on 30 March 2015 and signed R-ZE—RAE=A=+HHESSHELH I A
CRBRE




For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE=—F—mFF+ A=+ HIFE

At 1 January 2013

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive loss for the year

Total comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year

Issue of shares
Share issue expenses
Transfer to statutory reserve

At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Issue of shares upon placing
Share issue expenses
Transfer to statutory reserve

At 31 December 2014

ERER
ERANZEER

FRRA(BR)/ MELE
Rk

ROFRX
ERTiRRA

FREN
FRABZEAE

FREREUEAR

REEZBAEARG
ROEARX
ERTiERR

R=E-ME+=F=1-A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
MERmBER

Foreign

currency
Share Share Merger translation Statutory Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits equity
R& Rtk AtRE  MAERE EERE REEH BRAZ
RMB'000 RIMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RIMB'000
ARBTL  AREFRT  AREBTR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR ARETR
89,086 18,867 5,992 2572 8,427 63,050 187,994
= = = = = 43,044 43,044
- - - (2,218) — - (2,218)
- - - 2,218) — 43,044 40,826
5,743 5,168 - - - - 10,911
- ®) - - - - o)
_ - = = 2,101 {2,101) =
94,829 24,007 5,992 354 10,528 103,993 239,723
- - - - — 25,880 25,830
- - - 34 — — 341
= = = 341 = 25,880 26,221
18,233 51,055 - — — — 69,288
- 2112) - - - - (2,112)
- _ - - 1,290 (1,290) -
113,062 12910 5,992 695 11,818 128,583 333,120




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

> A N —
mERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—_FE—WMFF+-_A=1+—HILFEZF

2014 2013
—E-IF —ZE—=%
RMB’000 RMB"000
AR®TR ARET T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETBHEENRESRE
Profit before tax B 52 B 29,510 47,626
Adjustments for: HUTEBEELAE :
Interest expenses FERZ 2,708 2,637
Interest income F B U A (92) (32)
Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables HEKE S FIBERN R EER 61 198
Inventories written off 5 & 88 39 26
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BEMREITE 4,348 4,828
Depreciation of investment property WEYMERE 134 —
Fair value gain on held-for-trading investments BIEEEREMMTESRT AN
and derivative financial instrument N ERE (8,494) (23,319)
Share of loss of an associate JE (B & N B SR 2,721 1,371
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments TE S L b FE & R 8 73 73
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HE®WE - BE MREEE 1 1
Operating profit before working capital changes EEBEESEHAIRE LR 31,009 33,409
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL,/(3Em) 5,925 (587)
Increase in trade receivables FEUE 5 R IEIE 1N (10,806) (4,187)
Decrease/(increase) in note receivables W EER L (38 0n) 7,071 (4,378)
Increase in derivative financial liability PTEE R EEE M 1,000 =
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, deposits and FERFRIE - e RHEA KRR
other receivables (3&h0) /F (17,573) 12,529
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables FEN B S EE i Crid) 1,805 (13,817)
Decrease in accruals and other payables FERT B FA R E th E 15 SRIE R > (5.306) (23,030)
Net cash generated from /(used in) operations KEEE/(FTA)RSFE 13,125 (61)
Interest paid EENEES (2,677) (1,881)
Tax refund RE 43 297
Income taxes paid EEREH (4,363) (2,076)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating RESTEIES (TH)IRE F5E
activities 6,128 (3,721)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETHEENRERE
Interest received B U F B 92 32
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE MENEK (3,384) (5,575)
Addition of construction in progress TEEIRAE (5,589) (4,071)
Purchase of held-for-trading investments BEREEERE (58,391) (7,687)
Increase in pledged bank deposit B IRITIF ZIG 0 (23) (6,114)
from disposal of held-for-trading HEREERREMSRIEA
26,034 7,850
HEWME - KERREMSRIE
1 2
WEE BT 2 BV ER & H % AR = (4,459)
AR E M FTS RIE (3,940) (6,266)
i (45,200) (26,288)
FESEAMEEERART —ZT-NFEFR




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
mERERBR(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE=—F—mFF+ A=+ HIFE

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEZHELENESRE
Proceeds from borrowings BRATISRIE
Repayment of borrowings BEER

Share issuing expenses RRDBEITHRX

Proceeds from issue of shares BT RS R
Repayment of promissory note BERENEE

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities g & &S, (T )RS H4E

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash BHERBSSEWEM CRD)
equivalents FE

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of REVNMNRERREZEY
the year

Effect of foreign currency exchange rate changes SN [ 2R A B 2 2

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the RERKNEESRBRESEEY
year

Analysis of the balances of cash and cash REeERRSEEYERIN
equivalents
Cash and bank balances RE RIBITHER
Bank overdrafts RITES

2014 2013
—ZET-MmF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARBET T
35,166 28,234
(29,336) (29,810)
(2,112) (8)
69,288 =
(15,844) =
57,162 (1,584)
18,090 (31,593)
48,515 82,132
(92) (2,024)
66,513 48,515
69,421 51,474
(2,908) (2,959)
66,513 48,515




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M B WR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

1.

BE—F—WFEF - A=+—HIFFEF

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 9
December 2009 with limited liability. The registered office
of the Company is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.
The address of the Group’s principal place of business is
located at No. 28 Xinfeng Road, Xinfeng Industrial Park,
Fanggian Town, New District, Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province,
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). Its parent and
ultimate holding company is China Automotive Interior
Decoration Holdings Limited (incorporated in Cayman
Islands).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of nonwoven fabric products used in automotive interior
decoration parts and other parts and trading of rubber and
garment accessories.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB") and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousands, except when otherwise indicated.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“GEM") on 29 September 2010. On 25 August
2014, the Company transferred the listing of its shares from
GEM to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

—REHR

RARARRZZENF+_ANBRASES
MK ABRAR - RARIEMFEREMA
B Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
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mEMBwMERMEEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

BE—F—WFEF - A=+—HIFFEF

2.

China Automo

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has adopted all of the new
and revised standards, amendments and interpretations
("“new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “"HKICPA") that are relevant
to its operations and effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2014.

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following new standard, amendments and interpretations
("“new HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), which are effective
for the Company’s financial year beginning 1 January 2014.
A summary of the new HKFRSs are set out as below:

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies

Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

The nature of the impending changes in accounting policy
on adoption is described below.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRRMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
B2 -—F—FE+-A=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 Investment Entities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS
12 and HKAS 27 Investment Entities for the first time in
the current year. The amendments to HKFRS 10 define an
investment entity and require a reporting entity that meets
the definition of an investment entity not to consolidate its
subsidiaries but instead to measure its subsidiaries at fair
value through profit or loss in its consolidated and separate
financial statements.

To qualify as an investment entity, a reporting entity is
required to:

. obtain funds from one or more investors for
the purpose of providing them with investment
management services;

. commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to
invest funds solely for returns from capital appreciation,
investment income, or both; and

° measure and evaluate performance of substantially all
of its investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments have been made to HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 to introduce new disclosure requirements for
investment entities.

As the Company is not an investment entity (assessed based
on the criteria set out in HKFRS 10 as at 1 January 2014),
the application of the amendments has had no impact on
the disclosures or the amounts recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

FERHIREETERMBREER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRRMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
B2 -—F—FE+-A=+—HIFE

2.

China Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Limited .

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 32
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities for the
first time in the current year. The amendments to HKAS 32
clarify the requirements relating to the offset of financial
assets and financial liabilities. Specifically, the amendments
clarify the meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable
right of set-off’ and ’‘simultaneous realisation and
settlement’.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. As
the Group does not have any financial assets and financial
liabilities that qualify for offset, the application of the
amendments has had no impact on the disclosures or
on the amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. The Group has assessed whether
certain of its financial assets and financial liabilities qualify
for offset based on the criteria set out in the amendments
and concluded that the application of the amendments has
had no impact on the amounts recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable
Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial
Assets

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 36
Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
for the first time in the current year. The amendments to
HKAS 36 remove the requirement to disclose the recoverable
amount of a cash-generating unit (CGU) to which goodwill
or other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives had
been allocated when there has been no impairment or
reversal of impairment of the related CGU. Furthermore, the
amendments introduce additional disclosure requirements
applicable to when the recoverable amount of an asset
or a CGU is measured at fair value less costs of disposal.
These new disclosures include the fair value hierarchy, key
assumptions and valuation techniques used which are in
line with the disclosure required by HKFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurements.

The application of these amendments has had no material
impact on the disclosures in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 39
Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting for the first time in the current year. The
amendments to HKAS 39 provide relief from the requirement
to discontinue hedge accounting when a derivative
designated as a hedging instrument is novated under certain
circumstances. The amendments also clarify that any change
to the fair value of the derivative designated as a hedging
instrument arising from the novation should be included in
the assessment and measurement of hedge effectiveness.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. The
Group does not have any derivatives that are subject to
novation.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies

The Group has applied HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies for the
first time in the current year. HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 addresses
the issue as to when to recognise a liability to pay a levy
imposed by a government. The Interpretation defines a levy,
and specifies that the obligating event that gives rise to
the liability is the activity that triggers the payment of the
levy, as identified by legislation. The Interpretation provides
guidance on how different levy arrangements should be
accounted for, in particular, it clarifies that neither economic
compulsion nor the going concern basis of financial
statements preparation impliesthat an entity has a present
obligation to pay a levy that will be triggered by operating in
a future period.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 has been applied retrospectively. The
application of this Interpretation has had no material impact
on the disclosures or on the amounts recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_F—WFES /A =—1—HIFFF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts’
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Amendments to

Customers’
Accounting for Acquisitions of

HKFRS 11 Interest in Joint Operations’

Amendments to Clarification of Acceptable Methods
HKAS 16 and of Depreciation and Amortisation®
HKAS 38

Amendments to Agriculture: Bearer Plants®
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41

Amendments to Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
HKAS 19 Contributions*

Amendments to Equity Method in Separate Financial
HKAS 27 Statements’

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its

HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture®
Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle®

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle*

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,

with earlier application permitted.

Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on

or after 1 January 2016, with early application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017,
with earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with
earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016,
with earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with

earlier application per.nw—
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRRMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
B2 -—F—FE+-A=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

The Group is in the process of assessing the potential impact
of the above new and revised HKFRSs upon inital application
but is not yet in a position to state whether the above
HKFRSs will have a significant impact on the Group’s and the
Company'’s results of operations and financial position.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of other HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results
and the financial positions of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, which is a
collective term that includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations (the
“Interpretations”) issued by the HKICPA and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, in addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except certain financial instruments
are stated at their fair values. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for assets.
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3.

China Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Li

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgments
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
special purpose entities) controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
effective date of acquisition and up to the effective date
of disposal, as appropriate. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests have a deficit balance.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests. Where certain assets of the subsidiary are measured
at revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative
gain or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity are accounted for as if the Company had directly
disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred directly to retained earnings). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity.

FESHEEK#E)

RERBEEE)

MERE  AEBESHHBARZMBWKIE
HHEE FREFBRREARERMKE QT
PRERAE—B -

MESBEARS « &t - WA KRS RERAS R
B R AR

FEERBEEHBLAZHEEA Eiz &
5
WEEHAREREMBRARZEHIEZAEE
RIBAR A ANELEEE)  RERZHA
IR o AEE zEm RO E S M RE(EL S
EURBRENHEAREREES 28 o Iz
Prm BN ARREE N ERREZ DT
EMERIZEZRE  HEERESER  BAQF
BAANFE -

BEAKBREMBARMNZERER  HEBR
SERG)TRBREREAREEEN A TFE
RBEENBATNEE(REREB)RAGN
KA R ERRAEZHNER -
B ARE TEENRERSEA N FET
2 MEBNREECREb2mkaEtR
KAtz R AR BTN Al 2w S TR
REZRFNER  BURARREERKE
ZHEREEARRE  EHN S BEEBRENE
EEREREAN - EAHNEARTRENET
AIRERKEZHEE B D FEERE R
REBGTEREORERMT A - R NG
EMRERENATE - (HER)ERER
SRARARZEHE LR E I FER K
o

HESEAMEEARART —FT-NFFH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBRRMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
B2 -—F—FE+-A=+—HIFE

3.

China Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Li

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as
a bargain purchase gain.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified
in another HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period”
(which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date)
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify
as measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company in which the Company, directly
indirectly, controls more than one half of the voting
e power to govern the financial and operating
remove the majority of the members

jority of votes at the
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China Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Limited .

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less any impairment
loss. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally accompanying
a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying
amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of
acquisition. The Group’s investment in associates includes
goodwill identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income
is recognised in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates
the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value
and recognises the amount adjacent to share of profit/(loss)
of associates in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are
recognised in the Group’s financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investor's interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyers, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using effective interest method.

Technical support income is recognised when the technical
support services are rendered.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the leases transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance assets are recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor
is included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the
lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
charged directly to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

Rental payable under operating leases are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the terms
of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised
as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated
to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in
the leases.
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China Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Limited .

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception
of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid land
lease payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the entire
lease is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted
for as property, plant and equipment.

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an
increase in the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of the property, plant and equipment,
the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that
asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment, using the straight line method, over
their estimated useful lives. The principal useful lives are as
follows:

Building 30 years
Plant and machinery 12 years
Motor vehicles 8 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 6 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years

The useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents leasehold improvements
under construction and plant and machinery pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Depreciation begins when the relevant asset are available for
use.

The gain or loss arising from disposal of an asset is
determined as the difference between the net sale proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset and is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation (including property under
construction for such purposes). Investment properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at fair value. All of the Group’s property interests
held under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are accounted for as investment
properties.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less
ccumulated depreciation and any accumulated
ciation is recogmsed so as to write
ver their estimated
t their estimated
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3.

China Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Limited .

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property
is derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average basis.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
all estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
qguoted in an active market and are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment. An
allowance for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. The amount of the allowance
is the difference between the carrying amount of the
receivables and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition. The amount of the allowance is recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
and recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the
recoverable amount of the receivables can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying
amount of the receivables at the date the impairment is
reversed shall not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of assets (other than goodwill,
intangible assets with indefinite lives)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable and
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the
balance sheet liabilities method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences, and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductlble temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
ities are not recognised if the temporary difference
or from the initial recognition (other
the other assets and
the tax profit
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China Automotive Interior Decoration Hold

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
except when it relates to items charged or credited directly
or equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in
equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“financial assets at FVTPL"). The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at
FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
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China Automo

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

3 the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the “other income”.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. At the end of each reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised in consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the assets’ carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when
an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses
were recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment losses
reversed do not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment losses not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are generally
classified into other financial liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted in respect of financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
te when derivative contracts are entered into and are
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
esulting gain or Ioss is recognised in
ive is designated
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China Automotiv

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially
measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at
FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

. the amount of the obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
the revenue recognition policies.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised directly in equity is recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities are removed from the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid or payable is recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Current assets and liabilities

Current assets are expected to be realised within twelve
months of the end of the reporting period or in the normal
course of the Group’s operating cycle. Current liabilities are
expected to be settled within twelve months of the end of
the reporting period or in the normal course of the Group’s
operating cycle.

Contingent liabilities and contingent
assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events that
is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable,
they will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is
virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

Foreign currencies

i. Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each
of the companies now comprising the Group are
measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the company operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi, which is the
Company’s presentation currency and the functional
currency of the principal operating subsidiary of the
The functional currency of the Company
ollars. The directors consider that
tation currency best
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

ii.

iil.

China Automotive Interior Deco

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities are reported as part of their fair
value gain or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the companies
now comprising the Group (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

(a) Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing
rate;

(b) Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates; and

(c)  All resulting exchange differences are recognised
as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations,
and of borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are taken
to owners’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold,
exchange differences that were recorded in equity are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as part of the
gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and iaim-;dj

acquisition of a foreign enti
liabilities of the foreign
closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash in hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

China Automotiv

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

As stipulated by the rules and regulations of the PRC,
the Company’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC are
required to contribute to a state-sponsored retirement
plan for all its PRC employees at certain percentages
of the basic salaries predetermined by the local
governments. The state-sponsored retirement plan is
responsible for the entire retirement benefit obligations
payable to retired employees and the Group has no
further obligations for the actual retirement benefit
payments or other post-retirement benefits beyond the
annual contributions.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
roducts and services, the nature of production processes,
f class of customers, the methods used to
r provide the services, and the
erating segments
regated if they
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3.

China Automotiv

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit
or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been impacted.

For financial assets, other than those at fair value through
profit or loss, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

(b) default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

(c) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

(d) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period of 7 to 90 days, observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(1) A person or entity is preparing the financial statements
of the Group;

(2) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group.

(3) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(3) (Continued)

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (2).

(vii) A person identified in (2)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between
related parties.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
d of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
ial adjustment to the carrying amounts of
next financial year.
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4.

China Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Limited -

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of trade receivables (Continued)

The Group makes impairment of trade receivables based on
assessments of the recoverability of the trade receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each debtor. Impairment arises where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful
debts requires the use of judgment and estimates. Where
the actual result is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of the trade
receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the reporting
period in which such estimate has been changed.

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for the Group’s
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. The
Group will revise the depreciation charge where useful lives
are different to those previously estimated, or it will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold.

Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in different
jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining
the provision for income tax. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers
to be probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses can
be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of non-current assets

If a triggering event occurs indicating that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable, an assessment
of the carrying amount of that asset will be performed.
Triggering events include significant adverse changes in
the market value of an asset, changes in the business
or regulatory environment, or certain legal events. The
interpretation of such events requires judgment from
management with respect to whether such an event has
occurred. Upon the occurrence of triggering events, the
carrying amounts of non-current assets are reviewed to
assess whether their recoverable amounts have declined
below their carrying amounts. The recoverable amount is
the present value of estimated net future cash flows which
the Group expects to generate from the future use of the
asset, plus the assets residual value on disposal. Where the
recoverable amount of non-current assets is less than its
carrying value, an impairment loss is recognised to write the
assets down to its recoverable amount.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment. Determining whether goodwill is impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash
generating units to which goodwill has been allocated.
The value in use calculation requires the management to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the
cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of the future cash flows.
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

(b)

China Automo

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. @I A
(a) ¢WMIESE

The Group
AEM
2014 2013
—E2-mFE —ZET—=
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETT
Financial assets: SRMEE
Fair value through RAFERERT R
profit or loss 68,486 27,141
Loans and receivables B R EYGRIE
(including cash and (BIERE X
cash equivalents) ReEED) 199,433 149,031
Financial liabilities: WA sE:
Derivative financial liability #T4£& @& & 1,000 —
Amortised cost BESEA AR 70,350 83,982

Financial risk management objectives

The Company

RAT
2014 2013
—EF-mFE —FT—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTT
131,572 80,429
356 15,540

(b) HEEBEEREREEK

and policies

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk and
fair value interest rate risks and price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of
the Group. Because of the simplicity of the financial
structure and the current operations of the Group,
no major hedging activities are undertaken by
management.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk
Foreign currency risk

(i

(if)

Exposure to foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Hong Kong
and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to Renminbi (“RMB"”), Hong Kong
dollars (“HKD") and United States dollars
("USD"). Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations. The Company’'s management do
not expect the net foreign currency risk from
these activities to be significant and hence, the
Group and the Company do not presently hedge
the foreign exchange risks. The Group and
the Company periodically review liquid assets
and liabilities held in currencies other than the
functional currencies of the respective subsidiaries
to evaluate its foreign exchange risk exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2014, the Group has minimal
exposure to foreign currency risk with respect
to HKD as it is the functional currencies of
the respective subsidiaries in which their
business transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated.

At 31 December 2014, if USD had strengthened/
weakened by 5% (2013: 5%) against RMB
with all other variables held constant, the
Group's profit for the year and total equity
e been approximately RMB606,000
igher/lower, mainly as a
ains/losses on USD-
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5. SEIA®@
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BIEEBREEBERBEKEE)

and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued) mEE (&)

Interest rate risk VRS 4

(i)  Exposure to interest rate risk i  EAFZFERRE
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in REBEFTEE MMM EZHE
market interest rate relates primarily to its bank B TEEAEBEMNRITERK
deposits and interest-bearing bank borrowings FFERITERRIBITEZ B -
and bank overdrafts. Interest-bearing bank FERITERRRITEZFEALASE
borrowings and bank overdrafts at floating rates ElEs ppa et o

expose the Group to interest rate risk.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps 7N £ B 3 £ A5 PR AT A R 4 R 3
to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. AR - AT BEEEE
However, the management monitors interest rate PR WM EREE L
exposure and will consider hedging significant BAFERER

interest rate exposure should the need arise.

(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BREREDW
At 31 December 2014, if interest rates at the R—ZZE—NFE+=_A=+—8"
date had been 100 basis points higher/lower with Rz AZFE EF /T 100 @
all other variables held constant, the Group's EMMAEEMEHERTE
profit for the year would decrease/increase by ARNEBFREHFE TR+
RMB378,000 (2013: RMB293,000). This is mainly FHARYE378,000 (= —=
attributable to the Group’s exposure as result F: AR¥293,000T) HEZE
of increase/decrease interest expense on bank HRRITERRRITEI 2 A
borrowings and bank overdrafts net off with S R B R 1TTE A B A
interest income from bank deposits. 2R ORLEEZAER

R PR

Other price risk B (Z15 /8

(i)  Exposure to other price risk () AZEMEERR
The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly AEBEZFREREMELER
through its investment. The Group currently EEBRRR - N&E

does not have a hedging policy in respect of the
risk exposure. In addition, the management of
the Group would monitor i isk i

China Automo



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

BE=F-—mEF A=+ —AILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5. &®MIA®

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BIEEBREEBERBEKEE)

and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Other price risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based
on the exposure to price risk of held-for-trading
investments and derivative financial instrument at
the end of the reporting period. If the prices of
the held-for-trading investments and derivative
financial instrument had been 10% higher/
lower, profit for the year ended 31 December
2014 would increase/decrease by approximately
RMB6,749,000 (2013: RMB 2,714,000). This is
mainly due to the changes in fair value of held-
for-trading investments.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the cash and bank balances,
trade receivables included in the consolidated
statements of financial position represents the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the
Group's financial assets.

The Group has certain exposure to credit risk as the
trade receivables from the five largest customers as
at 31 December 2014 represented 53% (2013: 54%)
of total trade receivables, while 18% (2013: 15%) of
the total trade receivables were due from the largest
single customer. It has policies in place to ensure that
sales are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are international and state-
owned banks with good reputation.

any collateral or other credit
edit risk associated with its

TS m e (%)
FIEm S (&
(i) BREDW

BREDSWMNIEREHRITEY
ZHEHEBBEREZBERAR KT
SEMIAET WIBEEER
BzERETESERTIAE L
TH10% Al E T —UF
+Z A=+ BLEFEZEAE
#an w9 A R 6,749,000
BT T —=ZF: AR
2,714,0007C) » W EZHR R
EBEEREZ N FEZEHK -

EEmE
FFAREMBRRENRE RIRITHE
B BB SFRNREEREANEE
MERBERBNRSEERR -

AEEERETEERR  BRAARF
MN-Z—NE+-A=+—HHEKEZ
SHIBHERE S RIEARESI% (ZF
—Z=F :54%) MEAE—XTFPHE
WE S HRIEMERE S RERLEI18%
(ZZE—=4F :15%) - HEEHEBEMN
BRIEEURAAEBERIHENTF -

HRX ST REERIFNBRLER
RIT - WA RRITEHBZARAR -

AEEYESEEMNERARIEMEER
BREEASESREERRZEER

—E-mEEH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—FT—WFE+=—A=1+—HIEFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5.
(b) Financial risk management objectives

SRMITAEE
(b) BEEREREEBEERBEKEE)

and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. The
Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves, by continuously monitoring forecast and
actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has available
unutilised banking facilities of approximately
RMB52,956,000 (2013: RMB23,086,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables below have been drawn up based
on the contractual maturities of the undiscounted
financial liabilities including interest that will accrue to
those liabilities except where the Group are entitled
and intends to repay the liability before its maturity.

Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless
of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise
their rights within one year after the reporting date.
The maturity analysis for other non-derivative financial
liabilities is prepared based on the scheduled repayment
dates

MEBEZEE

AEBRRBTEREERA LBEHRR
BE2®mF - URREERRWRHE
ENERARERARDESTEFR - AKH
BRRBARZMHEE  HEHREIRE
BRREABETESR IRUSHMEE
RBEZEHER  BAEERBES
B

RZZE—NWE+=-—A=+—H &x&
BEEABARBARTRENARE
52,956,000 C( =& —=ZF: AR
23,086,0007T) °

TRAMIARRBFTESHEEN
BRTANIMBR - ZXBRERURE
RAEAOHRER  BERZFTAREN
A FE (REEBR LB B ERHAE
EERRIN)

ABME  TwRTEENERS AR
—FRITERLERNZ TN - ABRE
KERGERZRTEFTFARERR -
HtrTEeMB B2 MBRATTY
HRIZ W E & K A AR o




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5. &®MIA®
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BIEEBREEBERBEKEE)
and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBELEE(F)
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE-OFE+=A=+—H
The Group REE
Weighted
average  On demand Total Total
effective or within Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 1 year cash flow amount
mETH EER AERRE
BT SR-F —ElE REAE REAE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETR ARBTT ARBTTR

Derivative financial liabilities fTESREE
Forward contract BHAN - 1,000 = 1,000 1,000

Non-derivative financial liabilities 3474 4REE

Trade payables [ENE 50 — 22,174 - 22,174 22,174
Accruals and other payables [E:tERREMENTE - 10,368 - 10,368 10,368
Bank overdrafts RITEX 5.4 2,908 = 2,908 2,908
Bank borrowings RITRH 5.8 31,413 5,320 36,733 34,900
67,863 5,320 73,183 71,350
The Company AT
Weighted
average  On demand Total Total
effective or within Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 1 year cash flow amount
mETH EZER FHRRS
ERAI= SR-F —EN0E RELE REAE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBT T AR%TR ARBTT ARBT T

FTLEMER
356
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

BE-F—PWE+= A=+ — AU FE
5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2013
The Group

Non-derivative financial liabilities {74 4RER

Trade payables

Accruals and other payables
Bank borrowings

Bank overdrafts

Promissory note

The Company

Non-derivative financial liabilities #f744 /A&
Accruals and other payables

ERNEHTA

Bt R RAMENTE

R/ITHR
BITEX
S

i BARA

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
MEFS
ERAE
%

6.0%
5.0%
8.3%

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
T
ERA=

%

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. TRIA#E)
(b) BEEREREEBEERBEKEE)

HEELERE(E)
RZE—=F+ZA=+—H
AEH
On demand or Total Total
within Over  undiscounted carrying
1 year 1 year cash flow amount
(e AERRE
SR—F —F0E mELE RESE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIL AREFTT ARETTT AREFT
20,323 — 20,323 20,323
16,189 — 16,189 16,189
30,497 — 30,497 29,055
2,959 — 2,959 2,959
16,242 = 16,242 15,456
86,210 — 86,210 83,982
ARTH
On demand or Total Total
within Over undiscounted carrying
1 year 1 year cash flow amount
B e FERRE
SR —FHE nELHE REeE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT

ARBTT

ARETT

ARETT
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

)

(if)

(iii)

the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments)
with standard terms and conditions and traded
on active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices and ask
prices respectively;

the fair values of derivative instruments are
calculated using quoted prices. Where such prices
are not available, a discounted cash flow analysis
is performed using the applicable yield curve for
the duration of the instruments for non-optional
derivatives;

the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (excluding those described
above) are determined in accordance with
generally pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis.

Fair value measurements recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial
position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
i rom prices); and

e those derived

5.

ERMIAE)
(¢) EWMIBEZAFE
SRMEERESBBECAFETRIUAT

BT

(i)

(if)

(iii)

R IR B0 R R BB
HHEEENSRAERSRA
ERFEHLETA) NHRIEE
FETSEABRELEEED
FiE

TETANAFERABERT
H-WMARESERER R
FEHRTATAZFHEREM
ZEHBRETHRERE RN

HieREERERABBENAF
BOAERTAERRIN) THEREER
ReRoTRE-REBEAE

E °

RGEHBMRREERZ L FE

-4

TREENSHRREAFETENS
BTADN - DREBEAFEANBREE
DERRR—E=

/AN - AFEHBEARAEER
B EEE T 2 B ECR D
B/

Fp = AFEFEBRR —FE
BEADZABREERAFBK
EEEOVER) KEEREITES
BB &

RAN=DFEAEBABELIFE

 RABETSEBRTTBREY

RETEE AR D H

BIZEEXB BB GER
PTHE ©

“E-NEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5. &@IA#E
(¢) Fair value of financial instruments (c) EMIBEZAFEE)
(Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial
position (Continued)
At 31 December 2014

REEHBHRRERES A FEH

B(#)

R-E—mE+=-A=+—H

The Group rEH
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
# Bl — wAl = FAl= a5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥Tr AR®TR AR%Tx
Financial assets SRMEE
Held for trading-listed equity #{EE = F MR AZ S
securities 68,486 — — 68,486
Financial liability £ 3=NE
Forward currency forward REBZ AR RE
contracts clarified as DEAETESMTA
derivative financial KON R ER G 4
instrument in the (HaE32)
consolidated statement of
financial position (note 32) — 1,000 — 1,000
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=-A=+—H
The Group rEE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HHIl— WA= HAl= =
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT AR®TT ARETT
Financial assets SMEE

Held for trading-listed equity #{EE= FHlRAZ S
securities




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—F—mFE+ A=+ HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5. SEIAE®@
(c) Fair value of financial instruments (c) ERMIAZAFEME)

(Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in RESH BRI EERZ A FHE

the consolidated statement of financial B2(#&)

position (Continued)

Financial assets/ Fair value  Basis of fair value measurement/valuation

Financial liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy  technique(s) and key input(s)

SREE/SRER RT5IBBHAFE DTESER ATEHENEE /MEFIRIZAARE

31/12/14 31/12/13
-mE+ZA=+-B -ZHFtZA=t-H

1) Held for trading Listed equity securities Listed equity securities  Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market.
Investments RMB68,486,000 RMB27,141,000
BIEEERE IHRAES R RHl— EEBTSMANEANE -

AR#68,486,000T AR 27,141,000

2) Foreign currency forward  Liabilities = Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are
contracts classified as RMB1,000,000 estimated based on forward exchange rates
derivative financial assets (from observable forward exchange rates
and liabilities in the at the end of the reporting period) and
consolidated statement of contracted forward rates, discounted at a
financial position rate that reflects the credit risk of various

counterparties.
RERMBRRENE A = FBI= FREENE - ARREREDREEHNEX(5
RITESREERERE AR 1,000,000T BEBRNITRIZR AT RGH) REQEHH
MIVEERE D BfEst TRRBSERSH 2 EERRZH
RHER o

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in RAEEENRN - HAl—RER— 2 B8

both years. B o

The directors of the Company consider that the RKABESBRE  SAMBEREANILE

carrying amounts of financial assets and financial KA EMN T K EEEmERTEE

liabilities carried at amortised cost in the consolidated EEmERE -

financial statements approximate to their fair values.
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6.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from 2012.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (which
includes bank borrowings, bank overdrafts and promissory
note) and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued capital and reserves. The directors of
the Company review the capital structure on a continuous
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost
of capital and the risks associated with capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the issuance of new shares
as well as the addition of new borrowings.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio at 31 December 2014 and 2013 was as
follows:

6.

EXxERER

AEEEREEERN  URERASERNSERE
WIFBELE  ARINEBB(CERERES T
& ABRRFREELE BT _Fi -
AEEBEREERITIE o

AEBEZEARBREBR(BRERITER
RITEXRANRR)UARAKRRHEE ARG
B (BREETEARER) - NRRRIESET
Eime EARE - (RIS — 8D EFERE
BARRAREAHBRER - ~ARESREBEES

BRBEBBITHIREINBER - FHHLEE
BARERE -

EXE/EE
R-B-MER=—F—=F+-A=+—HK
XA AL EMT

2014 2013

—E—-NF —E—=%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥F T ARBFT

Debt &% 37,808 47,470
Total equity EmAREE 333,120 239,723
Gearing ratio BEARBELE 11.3% 19.8%
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION 7.

Information reported to the directors of the Company, being
the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on the types of goods or services delivered or
provided.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments are as
follows:

(i)  the manufacture and sale of nonwoven fabric products
used in automotive interior decoration parts and other
parts; and

(i)  the supply and procurement operation segment
including trading of rubber, garment accessories and
food products.

Segment revenue and results

Supply and
procurement
operation
RERFREE

2014 2013
—E-mE  ZZ-=F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREFTL

oEHER
AAKEES(EBELREE) 2HUADE
AERRFEHBRANER  EEMHEES
RIBHARSHORER) -

AEBENKERAT2H/RS AT

() BERBEERRAENMEREMED
MESMER &

il

(i) HEMRBELESIH(RE
REMHRER) -

W

\

DEBA R EE

Manufacture and
sale of nonwoven
fabric products Total
HERHERGHER s
2014 2013 2014 2013
“EB-mE T ZE-mF -E-ZF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR AR¥TR ARBFT

Segment revenue: AHBBA

Sales to external customers HEFHTRE 187,489 354,650 169,762 188,727 357,251 543,377

Segment results PNEEE 1,650 3,579 24,997 26,828 26,647 30,407

Unallocated corporate income  RARAFMA 8,709 23,351

Unallocated corporate expenses  AARAARBX (3,138) (3,495)
Eyanil 32,218 50,263

(2,708) (2,637)

29,510 47,626

FHMA -
=+-H
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7.

China Automotive Interior Decoratio

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment revenue and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note
3. Segment results represent the profit from each segment
without allocation of interest income, fair value change on
held-for-trading investments, fair value change on derivative
financial liability and central operating expenses including
staff costs, finance costs and income tax expense. This is
the measure reported to the chief operating decision marker
for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance.

Segment assets and liabilities

7.

Supply and
procurement
operation
HERFBLH
2014 13
“E-mF —Z-=F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETT
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NEHEE 88,340 116,147
Unallocated corporate assets RAMAREE
Total assets BEEE
LIABILITIES aff
Segment liabilities HHEE 18,236 28,893
Unallocated corporate liabilities  KpEARAE
Total liabilities BEES

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to reportable segment other
than corporate financial assets including held-
for-trading investments and corporate cash and
bank balance. Goodwill is allocated to supply and
procurement segments as described in Note 23.

— all liabilities are allocated to reporta
than corporate financial liabiliti
financial liability, promissor
other payables.

7 RRE R ()

DEBAREE(E)
REDBNGFTBRAMEIMANAREE
SHERARR - 2 B AN L&D BN B UK
A BEEBERENQATEEZS  TEERE
BENATEEPRFRITEER(BEETK
K BERARABHRA)NERTEDH
EEA o WIAEELEREEZRADEE
REFHED BRRNEERE

ITHEERAE

Manufacture and
sale of nonwoven

fabric products Total
HERHERGHER &t
2014 2013 2014 2013
—g-@mE -F-=F Z®-mF “%-=F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETT  AR¥TR  AR¥T:R
213,105 182,718 301,445 298,925
106,290 28,728
407,735 327,653
54,467 42,880 72,703 11,773
1,912 16,157
74,615 87,930

REEDBRARRD BRI EER :

— BRRAERAEERBHEEERERA
AR RJITER)IN - AEEED
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEERE)
Other segment information Hib o EHBER
The following is the analysis of the Group’s other segment INTAEAEENEMS HER DT -
information:
Supply and Manufacture and
procurement sale of nonwoven
operation fabric products Total
HERFRL HERHERHHER EE
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
—g-mF -T-=f CZB-RE —F-=f -F-BF _"T-=F%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  AR%Tr  AR®Tr  AREBTT  AR¥TR  ARETR
Capital expenditure BRI - 4,572 8,710 5,983 8,710 10,555
Depreciation of property, nE - BERRENE
plant and equipment 1 1 4,347 4,827 4,348 4,828
Depreciation of investment REMENE
property 134 - - - 134 -
Amortisation of prepaid land Bt LA ETEEH
lease payments - — 73 73 73 73
Inventories written off MEEE - — 39 26 39 26
Impairment loss recognised in ~ BRZENE FHERE
respect of trade receivables BB 34 — 27 198 61 198
Revenue from major products and services REXTEEMRBRBAIBA
Information about the Group’s major products is set out in EARNEEEZEEMNEBERMES -
Note 8.
Geographical information wEE R
The Group's operations are located in the PRC and Hong REEREEMEUNFHBERES
Kong.
The Group’s revenue from external customers and LA sF it R &2 B 2R B ANER P U A e B R IR
information about its non-current assets by geographical S S HISETREEENER o
location are detailed below.
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets*
REIMREF KA FREEE *
2014 2013 2014 2013
—B-QNE —T-=F ZEBE-NF ~—T—=
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR ARBTT AR¥TR ARETT
321,501 494,042 54,530 49,016
B 30,065 43,690 4,440 4,566
NATEE) 5,685 5,645 - =
543,377 58,970 53,582

BEBHES -

RETEE AR D H

F AKBZBHINEF BIEETRRN EMAHME R

FRBEETRINELHEEEREE -

“E-NEEH
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7.

China Automo

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2014, revenue generated
from one (2013: one) customer of the Group amounting to
approximately RMB41,264,000 (2013: RMB57,549,000) has
individually accounted for over 10% of the Group’s total
revenue. No other single customer contributed 10% or more
to the Group’s revenue for both years ended 31 December
2014 and 2013.

Revenue from major customers, each of them amounted to
10% or more of the Group’s revenue, are set out below:

Customer A (Note) BEFEAKZ)
Customer B =FB

Note:
No information on revenue for the current year is disclosed for this

customer since it did not contribute 10% or more to the Group's revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2014.

REVENUE

The Group’s revenue represents sales of nonwoven fabric
products used in automotive interior decoration parts and
other parts, rubber, garment accessories and food products.

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

Nonwoven fabric for use in automobiles R RE/ES
— Sales of automotive floor carpets — AEMBAEE

— Sales of other automotive parts
Sales of rubber

Sales of garment
Sales of food

— EtTERANEE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SRR ()

DERE R (&)

EHFTEEFNEHR
HE-_Z-—NE+-_A=+—BItFE " &
REB—ZBEF(ZE—=F: —R)ELEWN
WAL AR 41,264,000(ZFE—=4F: A
R¥ 57,549,000 T) BE M AEBBKR AR
10% - BE-_ZE—NNFR_ZT—=ZF+=H4
=t+—BUEMEFE  BEEME-FFER
EEMURA 10% A L o

ETREFPHWA(BIEAREBE AT 10% A
B)#&3mT

2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTF T

o 57,549
41,264 -

wiit -

HREE-E—ME+ A=+ —RLEFEREFPIE
EREENRA10% A - BT ERBAFE TP
HWAE R

A
AEBYAERRITE AR R E AR 0 &
MMEmR KB RREGRRANHE -

WA DT :
2014 2013
—E-nF —T-=%
RMB000 RMB000
AR® TR ARETT
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9.

10.

OTHER INCOME

Interest income

Technical support income

Consultancy fee income

Fair value gain on held-for-trading investments
and derivative financial instument

Rental income

Others

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

The Group's profit from operations is stated after charging

the following:

Auditors’ remuneration

Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation of investment property

Operating lease rentals in respect of rented
premises

Staff costs including directors’ remuneration
(Note 14):

— Salaries and other benefits

— Retirement benefits scheme contributions

Cost of inventories recognised as cost of sales

isposal of property, plant and

9. HfhlgA
2014 2013
—Z-lmEF —T—=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
FBUA 92 32
By A 1,664 1,117
ABHBWA 951 662
BEEBERERITESRMI AR
N EWE 8,494 23,319
R ON 166 =
Htb 497 232
11,864 25,362
10. REHF
REEREE TSR THISIE -
2014 2013
—E-IF —T—=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
ZE RN & 955 798
TE 1 1 b & FRIE 5 73 73
Y - BEREETE 4,348 4,828
WEMERE 134 —
ERAEEYENKERE
& H 996 473
BIMRA(RIEESHH)
(Hiat 14)
— e REAEF] 12,428 11,432
— RGBT B 3,595 2,863
TR AHEN RN FERA 296,007 467,863

3
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—F—mFE+ A=+ HIFE

11. FINANCE COSTS

Interest expenses on bank borrowings
wholly repayable within five years

Interest expenses on bank overdrafts

Interest expenses on promissory note

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current tax

Hong Kong

PRC enterprise income tax
("EIT")

Overprovision for in previous years
PRC EIT

Deferred tax
Current year

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

11. BERK
2014 2013
—2-mE —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARETFT
BRAFRNBEEER
RITEROFEEA 2,066 1,799
BITETMFEBR 136 82
AN EENFEEA 506 756
2,708 2,637
12. FBBIAX
2014 2013
—F-mF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREFT
BN EAR 18
'k 1,397 1,383
FERECEEH
([HhEIRERBH]) 2,276 3,707
3,673 5,090
BEEERERE
R ERTSH (43) (297)
EERE
AEE — (211)
3,630 4,582

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands BiEE S
and British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), the Group is not subj
any income tax in th
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—FT—WFE+=—A=1+—HIEFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 12. FRBHBEAX#AE)

PRC EIT is calculated at the applicable rates based on
estimated taxable income earned by the PRC subsidiary of
the Group with certain tax preference, based on existing
legislation, interpretation and practice in respect thereof.

Pursuant to the enterprise income tax rules and regulations
of the PRC, the applicable PRC EIT rate of the Group’s PRC
subsidiary is 25%.

Pursuant to PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, an innovative
and high-end technology enterprise may enjoy a preferential
enterprise income tax rate of 15% (”IHT Enterprise
Rate”). On 22 December 2009, Joystar Wuxi obtained
the “Certificate of Innovative and High-end Technology
Enterprise” with validity period of three years. The IHT
Enterprise Rate enjoyed by Joystar Wuxi was expired in
December 2012. During the year ended 31 December
2013, Joystar Wuxi has further obtained the Certificate of
Innovative and High-end Technology Enterprise and the IHT
Enterprise Rate enjoyed by Joystar Wuxi will be expired in
November 2015. Consequently, the applicable income tax
rate of Joystar Wuxi for the year ended 31 December 2014 is
15% (2013: 15%).

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the
profit before tax multiplied by the PRC enterprise income tax
rate is as follows:

TRIGEMEHRRBERTAN - 2EREMER
BH - HERETHABENAE BT B
J& A RIATIREVERT R B - SUERB KRG
.

REBEFBEDERAEHROFOER - AEEMTH
BB ARMERPRECEMSHER25%

BEFBRCEMENE ST cETEZs
CEMBHREERRI5% ([SFEMEER
)  RZZEZENF+ZAZ+=ZH " KE
(BEH)MBEIEMECERE] EXHA
—F - BRE(ESHZENS T BMOERE
ERZE—ZF+AER BEZZT—=
+TZA=T—HILFE  RE(EHDE—D
BEEHEMCEEREE  MEE2(EBH)MEE
NEFEMCEREER _TE—AF+— A=
e Bt BE(EBHREBEE-_T—HF+=
A=+—BLFEZHRAEHER15% (=
T—Z=F :15%)

718 94 0 32 SR04 T AT 4 P S A 7R B 0 3 S
BEHBHEOHEDT -

2014 2013

—E-lmF —ET-=F

RMB’000 RMB"000

AR¥T T ARBEFT

Profit before tax B % AT Y A 29,510 47,626
Tax at the PRC enterprise income tax rate of A B TS R B R 25%

25% (2013: 25%) FE(ZF—=F :25%) 7,377 11,907

Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible — ZSAJ 305 5 2 B0 5 76 B 28 2,005 974

effect of income that are not taxable B8 R U A T 75 o 22 (2,966) (3,634)

ious years B FEBERE (43) (297)

LSy ENEI RN R o) -7 (1,470) (2,074)

{IH (B B B (1,273) (2,294)

4,582

—E-mEEH
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 12. FrS8ixX @)

Under the New Tax Law, from 1 January 2008, non-resident BEFHE AT NF—H—H# I
enterprises without an establishment or place of business in R BRI SRR B RA RSB - SEPE
the PRC or which have an establishment or place of business PR SIERBIRR A L B - AR AER
in the PRC but whose relevant income is not effectively EWHEEARK ST RR B L LR A
connected with the establishment or a place of business in ZIEERGE  BARZEBEBRA(ER
the PRC, will be subject to withholding tax at the rate of 10% PR 2R BRI 10% (BRIFRIGHIR R ) B
(unless reduced by treaty) on various types of passive income RITEET

such as dividends derived from sources within the PRC.

According to the notice Caishui 2008 No. 1 released by the 1R 95 B AR e B R A 7S B 8 b 2 B B 2008 58
Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation, 15RBA - INEARBECEE_TTN\FH %
distributions of the pre-2008 retained profits of a foreign- MINEIREEDIR-STN\FRIZREBEF -
invested enterprise to a foreign investor in 2008 or after BRI R BN EMER - At - RS RIE
are exempt from corporate income tax. Accordingly, the EARE  AEE2HBERNBARR-ZT
retained profits as at 31 December 2007 in the Group’s PRC +tFFTZA=+—HZREB &S D AHRN
subsidiaries will not be subject to 10% withholding tax on 10% 2 TaRRH -

future distributions.

According to the EIT law, starting from 1 January 2008, BERCEMRGERE B2TZENF—-—HA—H
10% withholding income tax will be imposed on dividend g BERERRKINARE ZZENEE
relating to profits earned by the companies established B BRE A s B 2 AT BB MR R e IR BB
in the PRC in the calendar year 2008 onwards to their 10% M TBHIFTEHL - R ERBTMEK B
foreign shareholders. For investors incorporated in Hong BEZSEPERREL25%RIENTRES -
Kong which hold at least 25% of equity interest of those HEEME 5% K EBER K o RS E R E B
PRC companies, a preferential rate of 5% will be applied. ANEHBE-—EEEETMERINKREERA
The Group has applied the preferential rate of 5% as the AEERE  WMAEEZRS%OEBEET XA
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are directly held by an MRB - N—_E—WF+=-_A=+—H &
investment holding company incorporated in Hong Kong. A E) A R FE A BB B A R BREA) 5% & s T 4D
At 31 December 2014, no deferred tax has been provided AR¥93,025000c(ZZE—=F: AR
for in respect of the temporary differences attributable to 82,287,000 JT ) &Y @ BF 2= BB M 1 ) 3 RE 7 TE 1%
such profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries amounting to #H ERASERNEZEEBRREZFERLD 2K
approximately RMB93,025,000 (2013: RMB82,287,000) as i - MERRZERAGE TSN A] R RER -

the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. SRER
Basic earnings per share BREXEF
The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to AARBEAEGLERERBHN M E £
owners of the Company is based on the profit for the year DIRBEBARNGHEES ABRMGEE MO A
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately R #25880,000t(—FE—=%F: AR
RMB25,880,000 (2013: RMB43,044,000) and the weighted 43,044,00070) R FABE BEITHE @R Z M
average number of ordinary shares of 1,213,229,589 (2013: ¥ 8 R1,213,229,589 (=T — =4 ¢
1,123,200,000) in issue during the year. 1,123,200,000 &) s & B H °
Diluted earnings per share SREBERF
For the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, diluted HRARARRBE_T—NFER_T—
earnings per share are the same as the basic earnings per +—A=+—HItFEIE
share as the Company did not have any dilutive potential g MEE=T—
ordinary shares during the years ended 31 December 2014 =

and 2013.

China Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Limited -
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14. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES' AND 14. X E{TBRAEREEHMH
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION

Details of remuneration of the directors of the Company for BIEETMRAERFTESLFTUEN(F622FE)E
the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and section TBIEMR M BBAFERRRESHMF
7B of Schedule 11 to the New Hong Kong Companies (= UNE
Ordinance (Cap 622) are as follows:
Salaries and Retirement benefit
Fees allowances scheme contributions TotaI
he HeRBE BRI BT B4
2014 2013 2014 201 2014 2013 2014 2013

3
ZE-mE -—ZT--£ ZB-MF -—2--F ZF-NMF -—T--£ ZB-MF —T--%F
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT AR¥Tn AREBTT AR¥Tn ARETT AR%Fn ARETL

Name of director BEpe
Executive director HIEZE
Zhuang Yuejin (Note (@) ERE(Mii# (3)) 356 359 145 145 46 45 547 549
Pak Ping ("Mr. Pak") AT([A%E]
(resigned on (R=F—m#E
9 October 2014) +ANBEE) - 144 166 — 1 7 173 151
Wong Ho Yin (Note (b)) EER(M3E (b)) 40 288 285 = 13 12 338 300
Ni Bin (appointed on 31 May i (R=F—=4
2013 and resigned on RA=+-BEZA
21 November 2013) RR-E—=F4—
A-T—-AE&{E) - - - 40 - - - 40
Ruan Bixia (retired on REE(R-F-=%
20 May 2013) A-THRE) - 37 - = = = = 37
Xiao Suni (appointed on EHER(N-ZT-—mF
14 October 2014) +A+RAEZRE) 20 = - = _ — 20 _
Independent non-executive B HHiTEE
director
Feng Xueben BER 48 48 = — — _ 48 48
Mak Wai Ho BRER 96 96 - - - — 96 9
Sung Kwan Wun (appointed RE&(R-E—=%
on 19 August 2013) NATABEZE) 48 18 - = = — 48 18
Tang Yanfei (retired on ARERZE-ZF
20 May 2013) RAZTHEM) - 19 = — — — _ 19
608 1,009 596 185 66 64 1,270 1,258
Note: Yoz
(a) Mr. Zhuang Yuejin is also the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (a) SRR TN AR R RN EEFRITHAE -
of the Company.
(b) Mr. Wong Ho Yin is also the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. (b) EERTENBAR B FEEE -
During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, no HEZZNFER=_FE—=F+=-A=+—H
emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors as a JJ;$F“ AEBMERNESS NS EAERE
discretionary bonus or an inducement to join or upon joining TEAL SR 5] I A SN AR &= B e 1) 52 B s 1
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. There was E’EH‘;‘,&@1; R E—E—NNER-_T—=F
no arrangement under which a Director waived or agreed to +=—A=+— EIJJ:$FF MEESHEXFAE
waive any emoluments during the years ended 31 December WEEAME LT HE -

2014 and 2013.

emoluments of senior management (excluding Directors)

EEE(TEREERT)NMENFUTEHE

Number of individuals

AT EH
2014 2013
—E—mE —E==
000,000 7T) 3 5

HESEAMEEARART —FT-NFFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

BHE —F—WFEf—HA=+—HIFE

15. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included 2 (2013: 2) directors, details of whose remuneration
set out in Note 14 above. The emoluments of the remaining
3 (2013: 3) individuals are set out below:
Basic salaries and allowances %$$ﬁ%&}$ﬁﬁ

16.

17.

Retirement benefits scheme contributions

The emoluments fell within the following band:

15.

17'(%55 %lj _I—iu{/\T))\

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

hEREMEES
FEBMNAFERNANREHHA L BERS

(ZZ—=F - WMR)EF  MeFBHIIRE
X144 T =BEaTMAL(ZE—=
F o =ZR)NFHETAOT -
2014 2013
—E—-NF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREET T
623 426
25 89
648 515

MeNFATHRER

Number of individuals

AT EE
2014 2013
—2-mE —F—=
Nil to RMB798,000 (equivalent to approximately =% A R# 798,000 7T
HK$1,000,000) (FEZ7491,000,000%7T) 3 3

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the non-executive
director, highest paid employees as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. None of the non-executive director and highest paid
employees waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
THE OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit for the year attributable to the owners of the
Company included a loss of approximately RMB514,000
(2013: RMB2,744,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.

DIVIDEND

The directors d
dividend in r
(2013: Nil).

China Automotiv

16.

BE_Z-DOFER-_ZF-Z=F1+_A=1+—8
LEER AKERERNES  SFHFHES
XNME - ERREMAREEHLMAREE
BEVEER) - JIERMRMEE BHE—FT-OF
RZZB—=F+-R=+—HILFERN - &
FRTEZRESHEEEREXREREL
B -

RRAEE ARG FERR

ARBBEEAREFEEENBEERAR Y
%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%%h@AE%m4wwﬂ_=
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. Y1¥ - BERRE

The Group P
Furniture
Plant and Motor and Leasehold  Construction
Buildings ~ machinery vehicles fixtures improvement in progress Total
BF  BERER RE  GRREE HENERE ERIR Rt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  AREFT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETRT  AREBTR  ARETR
Cost A
At 1 January 2013 RZE-Z6-f-R 10,067 41,865 2,383 1,063 2,241 863 58,482
Additions RE 4,512 1,583 59 69 201 4,0M 10,555
Acquisition of subsidaries WERBLE - - - 4 = = 4
Transfer from construction in EREERTR
progress - 3,720 - - — (3,720) -
Disposals e - - (107) (20) - = (127)
Exchange alignment EifE (30) = = (1) = = (31)
At 31 December 2013 and W-F-Z6+-A=1-H
1 January 2014 R=Z-mE-F-H 14,609 47,168 2,335 1115 2,442 1,214 68,833
Additions RE - 2,872 — 16 233 5,589 8,710
Transfer from construction in ERRERIR
progress — 6,803 — — — (6,803) —
Transfer to investment property ERoRANE
(Note 19) (it 19) (4,542) - - - - - (4,542)
Disposals & = = = (15) = - (15)
At 31 December 2014 R-E-EBE+-A=1+-H 10,067 56,843 2,335 1,116 2,675 — 73,036
Accumulated depreciation and ~ EHHTEREE
impairment
At 1 January 2013 R-E-=-5-H 2,525 12471 1,112 il 1,507 — 18,336
Charge for the year FEX 336 3,816 295 102 279 = 4828
Disposals & - - (106) (18) = - (124)
At 31 December 2013 and W-E-=f+-A=1-H
1 January 2014 R=Z-ME-F-A 2,861 16,287 1,301 805 1,786 — 23,040
Charge for the year EELH 310 3,690 181 97 0 - 4,348
Disposals HE - - - (13) - - (13)
R=F-ME+=A=1-H 889 1,856 - 21375

45,661
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. BREWE
RMB’'000
ARBETF T
Cost ESEZF
At at 1 January 2014 RZT—ME—-—H—H —
Transfer from property, plant and ﬁ%i‘%é%% B E M (A 18)
equipment (Note 18) 4,542
Exchange realignment ER k= 16
At 31 December 2014 RZE-—NF+-HA=+—H 4,558
Accumulated depreciation ATHE
As at 1 January 2014 RZZE—ME—A—H =
Charge for the year FEZH 134
As at 31 December 2014 RZE-MFE+-A=+—H 134
Carrying amount IREE
As at 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NME+—-_A=+—H 4,424
As at 31 December 2013 R-_ZE—=%+-A=+—H —
Fair value NEE
As at 31 December 2014 R-B-NE+=-HA=+—H 4,748
As at 31 December 2013 RZZB—=F+ZA=+—H —
The Group’s properties held to earn rental purposes were REBRERDESNMERARIEGE -
measured using the cost model and were classified and RIEYHE S FBL 5 IR
accounted for as investment properties.
As at 31 December 2014, the investment properties with RZZE—MF+_A=1+—0H REMENKE
carrying amounts of approximately HK$4,424,000 was E{E#)/54,424,00087C © HERERALE
pledged as security for the Group bank borrowings. RITREFHAER R
The investment properties with carrying amounts of RZZ—MF+_A=+—0H BEMENKR
approximately HK$4,424,000 were leased to independent EE A A 4,424,000/87T - ERBYE =7

third parties as at 31 December 2014. The details of the o $E.E'J7[_—Hﬁiﬁfi‘£“$ﬂ§ﬁﬁ// IR
Group’s total future minimum lease receivables under non- FEUHE € B RE R
cancellable operating leases are stated in Note 40.

The investment pro
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19.

20.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The fair value of investment properties is based on valuation
reports carried out at the end of each reporting period by
an independent property valuer (the “Valuer”). The Valuer
has appropriate qualification and recent experiences in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations. The
fair value was determined based on capitalization of net
income method, where the market rentals of all lettable
units of the properties are assessed by reference to the
rentals achieved in the lettable units as well as other lettings
of similar properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalization
rate adopted is made by reference to the yield rates of
4.25% observed by the valuers for similar properties in the
locality and adjusted based in the valuers’ knowledge of the
factors specific to the respective properties. The investment
properties were classified as Level 2 under the fair value
hierarchy.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

Current assets MENEE
Non-current assets EMEE E
Analysed for reporting purposes as:

At the beginning of the year REA
Amortisation for the year FEE
At the end of the year REFIE

The Group’s prepaid land lease payments represent payment
for land use rights outside Hong Kong under medium term

ount of prepaid land
the Group’s bank

19. BEYE

KREMENRFERG B EME ([HE
B DR B WEHIRAAREA (SERSE  (H1EA
BAFFER LIS AN S EEAL
MEEITEE - AFEDREA RBALYE
HITHIZ 5 ER 2 TS BOAEE - A FET)
RESUAFEBRFTEANEE  MAETHA
BUMTISHES2EMENHBSEM 2 BEIN
FABT B E B A B IEFE AR
R E AL R T2 E & d (4 ERMEA S 1R
PR R 4.25% @ SWARB(A BN E S
BRYMERAZRNHMBETAR - REVMEDIE
RATESERE_H -

20. AL HHEERE

The Group
AEH

2014 2013

—E-lEF —T—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBTT
73 73
2,771 2,844
2,844 2,917

MEEM S 29 -

2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT T AREFTT
2,917 2,990
(73) (73)
2,844 2,917

AEBEMBEMNLHBERBEEREBTHEN
FEEB AR 0 £ b 6 F 4 ST A 5R0R -

R-ZE—mME+—HA=+—H  AEEEHE
HAELHAARE2,844,000 T(ZF— =4 :
AR#2,917,0007T) B L FH & FIE1E
BERITEROBERR o

HESEAMEEARART —FT-NFFH
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

21. AfIBATINIRE

The Company

PN

2014 2013

—Z-lmEF —E—=F

RMB’000 RMB"000

ARETR AREFT

Unlisted shares, at costs JELETRR - IREK A 50,022 50,022

Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note (a)) JEU BB N B FRIB (A5 (a) 130,471 78,846

Less: Impairment loss recognised (Note (b)) J - BRERIBEEIE (A b)) (566) (566)

129,905 78,280

Amounts due to subsidiaries (Note (a)) B A B 538 (f it (a)) — 15,200
Note: et -

(@  The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free (a) YN BAREDAEKE 28 AT

and recoverable/repayable on demand. Bl REREE -
(b)  After considering the financial positions of the relevant (b) EEEHBEMBARNMERRE KARES

subsidiaries, the directors of the Company are in the opinion that
the carrying values of the amounts due from subsidiaries net of
impairment losses recognised of approximately RMB566,000 (2013:
RMB566,000) approximated to their recoverable amounts.

PR FE P B X R IR BR T B (I BR B R
AR AR 566,000 L(ZF—=F: A
R ¥ 566,000 7T ) EH A Y Bl & REARE
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31
December 2014 were as follows:

21. AMBATINERE (&)
NRZE-—ME+_A=+—H  BELXRQFIM
BRARMFEHINOT

Nominal value

of issued
and fully
paid ordinary
Place of shares/Issued Percentage
incorporation/ and paid up/ of equity
registration registered attributable to
Name of Company and operation capital the Company Principal activities
BRTRAE
LERZEE/
M BRIRARZ NN
NCEE BREREELE AEf AR A EiEERESL TEER
Direct Indirect
HE 4
Joystar (BVI) Automotive British Virgin Islands UsD1 100% — Investment holding
Interior Decoration Limited ("BVI")
ERABRHS 1% REER
(TERARRAES])
Joystar (BVI) Auto BVI usD1 100% — Investment holding
Inter-parts Limited RBHBRES = REER
Joystar International Investment Hong Kong HK$1,170,177 — 100% Trading of nonwoven
Limited fabric products used
REBERKRERRARA B 1,170,177 BT in automotive interior
decoration parts and
other parts
BEARAENMMGR
H A #05 H) 4770 EE
Joystar China Investment Hong Kong HK$1 — 100% Trading of rubber

ited

BB

13#7T

BERE

Manufacturing of
nonwoven fabric




Name of Company

DEEH

Link Excellent Limited

Link Sharp International
Limited

Sinogate Energy Limited
PR R AR A A

Splendid Sun Limited

BHmERAR

AmES(LB)BRAE

Oriental Strategic Limited

Brilliant Summit Limited

BIIBRAF

The above table list

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—F—mFE+ A=+ HIFE

21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operation

AR,
BREREEWH
BVI
RBHARES
Hong Kong
B

BVI
REBHARES
Hong Kong
B

PRC

el

BVI
RBHRARNES
Hong Kong

BB

Nominal value
of issued
and fully

paid ordinary
shares/Issued
and paid up/
registered
capital
ERITREE

EEREE

BRITRAR
AR A

USD50,000
50,000 % 7T

HK$10,000
10,000/ 7T

usD1
1%L

HK$1
18T
usD600,000

600,000

USD50,000
50,000 7T

HK$10,000
10,0008 7T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M RR M (H)

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company

RAF
EhERE ST
Direct Indirect

BE EE:
100% —
— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%
100% —
— 100%

21. AMBATINERE (&)

Principal activities

TEER

Investment holding

REZK

Trading of food products
EERM
Investment holding

RAZR

Trading of rubber
BEEBE

Trading of rubber
BEEBRR

Investment holding

RAEK

Trading of garment
accessorie
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22. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 22. ABE DTN ER
The Group
AEH
2014 2013
—E-—mF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTR ARETT

Cost of investment in an associate N A=NGITEE =0l 9N
Unlisted JEETH 10,206 6,266
Share of post-acquisition loss and other FE(GUR 1% BB &
comprehensive loss Hih2HEEE (4,092) (1,371)
6,114 4,895
At 31 December 2014, the Group had interest in the RZTE—NF+=—A=+—H  AEER T
following associate: Bt N AR R
Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ ownership interest
registration Issued and and voting power
Name of Company and operation paid up capital held by the Group  Principal activity
HEMARY BRER BRITR rEEFEHN
DRER BERE HBERAE FERRRRELS FEXK
2014 2013

—E-E —T-=%F

BN =B ER A A PRC UsD4,100,000 40% 40% Manufacturing of
s (2013: USD2,500,000) polyester fibers
4,100,000 % T TR ATk
(Z2—=F:

2,500,000 % 7T)

he associate is accounted for using the equity method in A WNCIDRI L Fnyr N SN p e e
inancial statements. iR o

SNRNER YD BEEAEENESME
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22. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 22.

Summarised financial information in respect of the associate

is set out below.

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Revenue

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive loss for the year

Total comprehensive loss for the year

MBEE

FRBEE

mEAE

FREBAME

A

FEEBR

FEHMBEHER

FEEHERERE

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate
recognised in the consolidated financial statements is as
follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REE QBRI (2)

T HFIB S A A AR -

2014 2013
—E-mEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBT T
12,739 5,821
23,545 19,102
(20,999) (12,801)
2014 2013
—E-ImF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBT T
19,436 —
6,804 3,428
6,804 3,428

L A A R B R S B TS R R N R OB

BARERIEEE NN T
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23. GOODWILL 23. B8
RMB’'000
ARBTT
The Group REE
Cost: AN
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013, R-_ZE—=%—F—H —ZT—=%F+-A=+—8"
1 January 2014 and 31 December 2014 —E--NNFE-A—BEE-WNFE+_A=+—H 51,099
Accumulated impairment losses: Rt REER !
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013, W=-—B—=(—HA—H -=8B—=H+=-H=+—H -
1 January 2014 and 31 December 2014 —E-NE-A—-BAR=-ZE-NFE+=-H=+—H =
Carrying amount: BRTEE :
At 31 December 2014 R-TE-MNE+=-A=+—8 51,099
At 31 December 2013 R-_E—=F+=-A=+—H 51,099
Allocation of goodwill to cash-generating SEREETESEAEN
units
Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing purposes AETRENS  MERESREhEES
to the cash-generating units of trading of rubber business BRATIRHEMBAR([HEEER WSS
by Sinogate Energy Limtied and its subsidiaries (“Sinogate BREBREINERAT (R DHEERK
Energy Group”) and trading of garment accessories business TR RIS EASR  MELRASEEAR
by Brilliant Summit Limited (“Brilliant Summit”), which are (B (I R SRS AR AL T 23R4 T o

together classified into the Group’s reportable segment of
supply and procurement opeartion.
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23. GOODWILL (continued) 23. BE &)

China Automo

Allocation of goodwill to cash-generating
units (Continued)
Before recognition of impairment losses, the carrying amount

of goodwill was allocated to the cash-generating units as
follows:

TEEEERSEAENH)

ERBEERN  BENEHERIEERSE
ELEEBEM - BRI

The Group
AEME

2014 2013

—E-QmEF —F-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#T T AREFT
Sinogate Energy Group (Note 39(a)) FRERE R B (152 39(a)) 21,847 21,847
Brilliant Summit (Note 39(b)) W) (f5E 39(b)) 29,252 29,252
51,099 51,099

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating units are
determined based on value in use calculations which use
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by the directors of the Company covering a five-year period,
and a discount rate of 18.68% and 14.26% per annum for
Sinogate Energy Group and Brilliant Summit respectively. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks to
the segment.

Cash flow projections during the budget period are based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a five-
year period. The cash flows beyond that five-year period have
been extrapolated using a growth rate of 3.00% per annum
for both Sinogate Energy Group and Brilliant Summit. The
growth rates do not exceed the long-term average growth
rate for the market. The directors of the Company believe
that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions
on which the recoverable amount is based would not cause
the carrying amount of the unit to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit.

REEEBMMAKRESEREEHAEET
EmEE  NERRANAREEAERER
FHMMNMBEE AEEELNIESRETER
TE  URFEAERERE KR HEIR RS 5
BEEF16.43% N 12.56% ° Fi{F AAYRLIR X
BRAHE  WERBREEY O TERR -

RIREHENR SR ERR DHRIBEEE it
ERETFHRRNPBREMEL - ERFH
FASMIR SR EE 2 BIER A P sE RSB K
#1115 /8 F 3.00% B 1B E 1 & RHEET - %
FREXVEBETENRMTFHERE - X
REAERRE  JRESEAKBENEERR
MEMSEARES BT EEREMNKEE
BHREELSEMAO AR DS REHE
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24. INVENTORIES 24. BE
The Group
KEE
2014 2013
—F-mF —F=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFT
Raw materials R 6,700 6,492
Work in progress TS 1,441 1,053
Finished goods UK R 7,755 14,281
15,896 21,826
25. TRADE RECEIVABLES 25. BEIWE ZFE
The Group
KEE

2014 2013

—F-mF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB"000
AR¥ET R AREFT
Trade receivables FEUE S E 90,511 79,657
Allowance for doubtful debts RERFEE (3,756) (3,695)
86,755 75,962

The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice
date, and net of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:

RIBEZAH  BUYE ZFORNRE DT (K
HRRERB) T

The Group
AEE

2014 2013
—g-mE  —T-=%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR¥ETTT
62,116
9,743

2,643
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 25. BWE S FIE(#)

China Automotiv

The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on
credit. The credit terms generally ranging from 30 to 120
days (2013: ranging from 30 days to 120 days), depending
on the creditworthiness of customers and the existing
relationship with the Group. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. Trade
receivables are non-interest bearing.

At 31 December 2014, the carrying amounts of the Group’s
trade receivables were denominated in RMB, HKD and USD
of approximately RMB68,212,000, RMB14,598,000 and
RMB3,945,000 (2013: RMB61,427,000, RMB11,155,000 and
RMB3,380,000) respectively.

At 31 December 2014, trade receivables of approximately
RMB21,923,000 (2013: RMB19,893,000) were past due
but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no recent history of default.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The aging analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

Overdue by: B

1 to 90 days 1290H

91 to 180 days 91180 H
181 to 365 days 181 £ 365 H
Over 365 days HBiE365H

During the year ended 31 December 2014, an allowance
was made for estimated irrecoverable trade receivables
of approximately RMB61,000 (2013: RMB198,000). The
impaired trade receivables related to customers that were
in financial difficulties and
receivables were n
any collateral o

AEEREZEFNESHBRAEZAEE - BER
FREESAKARNEENREHBE  EEH—
BANF30FE1208(ZE—=F: NF30F
120 B) » NEBBUN BREE R R 2 BUIR
HoMBRNzEBRBEREERETHEN -
ERE ZFBREE °

RZFE—WOF+ZA=+—0 XEENE
WESHRBZERBEENDAARE - Bt kE
TLEHE - PRI A AREE68,212,0007T © A
R % 14,598,000 7T & A R # 3,945,000 7t(=
T—=4F: AR%61,427,000t AR
11,155,000 7t &2 A R ¥ 3,380,000 7T) ©

R-ZB—NE+-A=1+—0 ERZZFE
PAREE21,923,000L(ZF—=F : AR
19,893,000t ) B @ BB KRB (A ° s ZRIAW
RETELRERCHENBIZES - AEER
Wl SR X S A RIS A T ERR -

ZERWE SRR REDOTIAT -

2014 2013
—E—-NF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFT
15,500 15,790
5,541 2,414

882 229

— 1,460

21,923 19,893

BE-_T-NF+-_A=+—RLFE B3
it 5t A1 AT Uk [o0 M B 5 SR IR
(==
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 25. EWEZREE)
The aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables which are REBEDRERKE SFIBBHRESITAT

impaired is presented as follows:

2014 2013
—ZE-MF —E-=4F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETTT

Overdue by: frnp=i
181 to 365 days 181 %365 H — 198
Over 365 days Hi®365H 3,756 3,497
3,756 3,695
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts is as follows: RIFBEES) :
2014 2013
—E-lE —ZT—=
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETT
At 1 January Rn—A—H 3,695 619
Acquisition of a subsidiary W B BB A R — 2,878
Impairment loss recognised on trade BRARKESREZ
receivables EE1E 61 198
At 31 December Rt+=-—A=+—H 3,756 3,695

26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26. BE{fIE - RERHEMEWRKIE

RECEIVABLES
The Group
AEH
2014 2013
—EB-—mEF 2=
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T R ARETE

732 20,558
3,096
2,373
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26.

27.

28.

China Automotiv

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26. EHIE - e N HMEWRFE &)
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Company

AAFE
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARETT

Prepayments and deposits FENFBERES 217 62
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The Lt EESEEAsORmE o DAEREINE
financial assets included in the above balances related to Fh & 2 B HA D e R GO B Y FEMRRIB B 7 -

receivables for which there was no recent history of default.

HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 27. BEEERE
Held-for-trading investments include: RIEEBEREBRE
The Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E-F —E—=
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETT

Listed securities: Lm#ESH

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong EEE FTHRAES 68,213 27,141

Unlisted investment: ELH/E :

Unlisted investment outside Hong Kong EEBUIMNEEAIEETRE 273 —
68,486 27,141

Fair values are determined with reference to quoted market NEED2EmEmEEABMEE

bid prices.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT 28. BEARITHER

At 31 December 2014, the fixed interest rate on pledged R-E—WFE+_A=

bank deposit of approximately RMB6,137,000 (2013: & A &

RMB6,114,000) with maturity of one month was 0.01% per
annum. The pledged i i

At 31 Decem
RMB6,137,
secure t
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29. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 29. ReERBEEEY
For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash RFEHEeRELRMNE  RekReEEDE
flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and BEFERS  ROGERMREBERITEF
in banks, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash and cash B RABRERERMTIRESRANIRE MR
equivalents at the end of the reporting period as shown in S EEY )RS B ERRER AR AREIE B &
the consolidated statement of cash flows can be reconciled BRAT -

to the related items in the consolidated statement of
financial position as follows:

The Group
AEH
2014 2013
—E-mEF =%
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFR ARETT

Cash and bank balances We MIRITEE 69,421 51,474
Bank overdrafts (Note 36) RITES (H7E36) (2,908) (2,959)
66,513 48,515

The Company

AAT
2014 2013
—E-lEF —T—=
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETT

Cash and bank balances e RIBITES 1,451 1,521
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29. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

At 31 December 2014, cash and bank balances are
denominated in the following currencies:

Renminbi AR
Hong Kong dollars &I
United States dollars ES
Renminbi AR
Hong Kong dollars BT

At 31 December 2014, the bank balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi amounted to approximately
RMB26,982,000 (2013: RMB15,977,000) were kept in banks
in the PRC. Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is
subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

29. RERASEEW#)

R-T—NE+-A=+—08 BLRRTHE
FIZATEBEHE -

The Group
AEH
2014 2013
—ZT-lmF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTR ARETT

27,018 16,009
40,372 16,210
2,031 19,255
69,421 51,474

The Company

P NN
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
RMB‘000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETT

2 2
1,449 1,519
1,451 1,521

R-Z—NE+-_A=+—8 ' KEEUAR
BEETEI T AR AP BIR ARIT 2 RITAE R L
BARK 26,982,000 T(ZE—=F AR
15,977,0007T) ° A RME 5 K SN 78 3 <7
B NG R {15 MR A BE ~ B TE R AN SRONE B 1
HIE °
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30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. A&
Number
of shares Amount Amount
RO A kA0 ¢E
Note HK$'000 RMB'000
Vil T TEx

Authorised: EE

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each  EREE0.1F T2 LEME

At 1 January 2013, R-ZE-=%—-f—HQ-

31 December 2013, —Z-=%+-f=+-H"
1 January 2014 and —Z-mE-A-BR
31 December 2014 —E-MFE+=-A=1+—H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000 863,495

Issued and fully paid: BRTRAR

At 1 January 2013 W-E-=%—Hf—H 1,080,000,000 108,000 89,086

Issue of consideration shares BIIRERD (a) 72,000,000 7,200 5,743

At 31 December 2013 and RZZE-=F+ZA=+—HK

1 January 2014 —Z-mE-HA-H 1,152,000,000 115,200 94,829

Issue of shares upon of placing REERETRG (b) 230,400,000 23,040 18,233

At 31 December 2014 R-ZB-mE+=-A=1+-H 1,382,400,000 138,240 113,062

Note: Kt -

(@)  On 27 May 2013, the Company issued 72,000,000 consideration (@ WMIE-—=FRA-++t8 AAFAMKEESR
shares of HK$0.1 each for the acquisition of the business of B X B 4 575 3597 72,000,000 R AR EE 0.1 78
trading of garment accessories. TTHRERD ©

(b)  On 17 September 2014 (after trading hours), the Company and (b) RZE-—EFAATLH(RZKRE) ARQA
the placing agent entered into the placing agreement pursuant MEEEREBVREHS Bt BERERDE
to which the Placing Agent agreed to place, on a best endeavour RB|NEEUNGREER? 0.38 BTN ERES
basis, to not less than six independent placees for up to %% 230,400,000 f&#T AR 9 T T D B 75 % 98 3L
230,400,000 new shares at a price of HK$0.38 per placing share. E@A cRERFHER -_T-—MFEAA=T+BR

The placing have been completed on 26 September 2014. K o
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31. RESERVES

The Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein for the current and prior year are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

31. f#fE
EME

HARREHRANZS -

The Company N
Foreign
currency
Share  Contributed translation ~ Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
R EE BABE MERERE RitEB At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETIT AREFTT ARETTT AREFTL
At 1 January 2013 RZE-=F-F-H 18,867 17,219 (1,674) (14,652) 19,760
Loss for the year FEER — — — (2,744) (2,744)
Other comprehensive loss for the year FEE2HEEE - — (2,660) - (2,660)
Total comprehensive loss for the year £E 2 EEEAE - - (2,660) (2,744) (5,404)
Issue of shares BTt 5,168 — — — 5,168
Share issue expenses RAETRY (8) = S = (8)
At 31 December 2013 and W_E-ZF+-A=+-HR

1 January 2014 “T-WF-F—-H 24,027 17,219 (4,334) (17,396) 19,516
Loss for the year FEER — — — (514) (514)
Other comprehensive loss for the year FE £ 2HEE — — 232 — 232
Total comprehensive loss for the year FE2ERBBES - = 232 (514) (282)
Issue of shares upon placing REERETRG 51,055 — — — 51,055
Share issue expenses RAETRS 2.112) = = = (2,112)
At 31 December 2014 R=F-mE+=A=+-H 72,970 17,219 (4,102) (17,910) 68,177
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31. RESERVES (Continued)

Note:

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the share
premium of the Company are distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue of shares at
a price in excess of their par value per share and after deduction of
capitalisation issue and issuance costs of placing of shares.

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus of the Company represented the difference between
the net assets value of the subsidiary acquired and the nominal value of
the share capital of the Company issued in exchange thereof pursuant to
the reorganisation during the year ended 31 December 2010.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group arose as a result of the Group
reorganisation implemented in preparation for the listing of the
Company’s shares in 2010 and represented the difference between the
nominal value of the aggregate share capital of the subsidiaries acquired
under the reorganisation scheme, over the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange therefore.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Statutory reserve

Subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC shall appropriate
10% of its annual statutory net profit (after offsetting any prior year’s
losses) to the statutory reserve fund account in accordance with the PRC
Company Law. When the balance of such reserve fund reaches 50%
of the entity’s share capital, any further appropriation is optional. The
statutory reserve fund can be utilised to offset prior year’s losses or to
increase capital after proper approval.

31. #E&E)

Het

Bt EE

REFEHEARE  ARARMDEERANE S ATH
DEFAABBR - EEZZRTBRE AHE - AQ
ABIERIRBFEBBRETEERHNOES -

Bt B R IR BB AR ) B A E 2 B ETRM KRR
BERMEBITREERNDBEITRARELNEHE -

BABRL
RRABZBABBIERTIIE Z B A B EEFEERE
BE_F-2F+ A=+ - HULFEEAREFRET
RIS 2 RN B RATEEZ ZH

A oHER
AEBZAHRBEEN S -—ZFEHREAARRMN L
MMATETTEMR - FEREEMA BB HHE A TR
FEFNEEED AR AR BT AMER BN R AT
ERMZEHE -

IR EEE
SNEIE B B RE RN EB M B RAMELNRE
SNEEHE - ZREBHEEAVBRERMAIMABIINE
FHRBRIE

EERE

REBEFERRE - RARRPEKLZ B ARAGH
FROLEMAN(EHRBEFEBERIN10% BEEE
REBSRS - MZREEEZEREZBEBRAZ50% -
AR ER S HEEME— S DIK - RESEERAER -
EERBES A REEEBEFEBEIEE -
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32. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 32. fTESWMERE
The Group REE
2014 2013
—E—-NF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFR ARETTT

Derivative financial liabilities fTESRmERE

Forward contract REBEH 1,000 =
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had the foreign RZZ—NF+_A=1+—0H  K"EEHFHE
exchange forward contracts with carrying amount of K E B RRE AL AR 1,000,000 (=
approximately with RMB1,000,000 (2013: Nil) in relation to T—=F T)IRHNERBAER -

foreign currency sales.

Major terms of these contracts are as follows: ZESHMEZBGRAOT ¢

Nature Notional amount Maturity Exchange rate

31 EEREH ZI 8 Ex

Sell RMB960,000 6 October 2015 RMB1 to HKD1.25

HE AR 960,0007T —ZT—RF+ARA AR 1 THI1.258T

Sell RMB625,978 5 April 2016 RMB1 to HKD1.278

HE AR#625,978 7T —E-RFMEARA AR TTHI1.278 BT
Sell UsDO to USD300,000 23 December 2015 USD1 to RMB6.170r 6.2

HE 02 7T% 300,000 % T —E-RF+=RA=+=H 1ETHRMARK6.17306.27T
During the year ended 31 December 2014, fair value loss of HEZT—NOF+-A=1+—HIEFE  AF
approximately RMB908,000 (2013: Nil) has been recognised BEFBHARKE 908,000 (=T —=4F : £)

in profit or loss. BRI R ©
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33. TRADE PAYABLES 33. EHEZNE

The aging analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice BERZRH  BENESRENERERS TN

dates, is as follows: T
The Group
AEH
2014 2013
—B-NmE —Z2—=
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTR ARETT

0 to 90 days 0£Z90H 14,712 17,966
91 to 180 days 91&180H 5,751 54
181 to 365 days 181 & 365H 92 250
Over 365 days Hi@365H 1,619 2,053
22,174 20,323
Trade payables generally have credit terms ranging from 10 BRESHENEEH RN FI0HE60H
days to 60 days (2013: ranging from 10 days to 60 days). (ZZ2—=F:N"TF10BE60R) °
At 31 December 2014, trade payables are denominated RIEZE—NF+-_A=+—H BNESxHE
in RMB, HKD and USD of approximately RMB20,509,000, AR - BURETE PRINABARE
RMB1,665,000 and RMBNil (2013: RMB8,104,000, 20,509,000 7T * AR¥ 1,665,000 R AR
RMB3,776,000 and RMB8,443,000) respectively. To(ZE—=F: AR¥S8,104,0007T * A

R# 3,776,000 L AR ¥ 8,443,000 7T) ©

34. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 34. EtEARHEMENKIE

The Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E-—mEF —E—=
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARETTT

Advance from customers BRI 927 4,417
f staff costs fEEH B TRKA 3,654 3,685
FEET R &R 1,867 2,394
FE {3 942 1,373
909
32 3,411
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34. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 34. ErtEAREMEMNRE S

(Continued)

The Company

ADH
2014 2013
—EF-mF —F =%
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFR ARETT

Accruals of operating expenses FEET &R 356 340
35. BANK BORROWINGS 35. RBITHER
The Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E2-mE —gF-=
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETT

Current B
Bank loans, secured RITER - BEM 30,500 29,055
Non-current FERE
Bank loans, secured RITER - AEA 4,400 =
The maturities of the above bank borrowings are as follows: EHRITIERB BB AT ¢
2014 2013
—E-mEF —T—=fF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARB T ARBT T
Carrying amount repayable: FEEEFRIEARMEE
— within one year — R—FR 30,500 25,317
— more than one year but within two years — BB —FERMENRN 684
— more than two years but within five years — BBERFEERAER

— BBhF

— more than five years

Secured bank
Less: Am

China
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35.

36.

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

At 31 December 2014, the bank loans were secured by
charges over the Group’s buildings, investment properties
and prepaid land lease payments of approximately
RMB6,896,000, RMB4,424,000 and RMB2,844,000
respectively, corporate guarantee provided by an
independent third party, personal guarantee provided
by a director of a subsidiary of the Group who is not a
director of the Company, properties provided by a director
of a subsidiary of the Group and guarantee provided by
The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. The weighted average effective interest rate on the
bank loans is 5.81% per annum.

At 31 December 2013, the bank loans were secured by
charges over the Group’'s buildings and prepaid land
lease payments of approximately RMB11,748,000 and
RMB2,917,000 respectively, corporate guarantee provided by
an independent third party, personal guarantee provided by a
director of a subsidiary of the Group who is not a director of
the Company, and guarantee provided by The Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. The weighted
average effective interest rate on the short-term bank loans
is 6.0% per annum.

At 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of the
Group's borrowings are denominated in RMB and HKD of
approximately RMB29,500,000 and RMB5,400,000 (2013:
RMB24,500,000 and RMB4,555,000) respectively.

BANK OVERDRAFTS

At 31 December 2014, the Group’'s bank overdrafts of
approximately and secured by RMB2,908,000 (2013:
RMB2,959,000) carried interest at market rate of 5.38%
per annum and was secured by the Group’s pledged bank
deposit of approximately RMBNil (2013: RMB6,114,000) and
secured by properties provided by a director of a subsidiary
of the Group who is not a director of the Company. The
bank overdrafts were denominated in HKD.

35.

36.

RITER(E)
R-ZE—NFE+-_A=1+—H8  BITEXEHK
EEEF REVERBEMN I HAEFIES B
4 AR % 6,896,000 + A K% 4,424,000 7T
M AR 2,844,0007T « —RBUE = FHied
MARIER  AEEETHERAR —RES
(WHARARES)RHMNEAELR - AEHE
THBAR —BEFRENMEURE AR
TR E B RERNERERR - RITEZRZM
BT HEBRNEREGES81E -

R-ZB—=F+-"A=+—8  RITEXHK
SEEFREMNIHBERBEIRIOARE
11,748,000 T X AR 2,917,0007T *+ —&% %
VEZFRENARER  AEERBAR—
BEZ(WHARAEZ)RENBEAEZEREE
B RITIERE BT R B REER - EHEIR
TEFRHMETHERFERAEEF6.0E -

RZE—OF+ZA=+—H XEENE
HHOEAERARBEREETLFE 23145
A E # 29,500,000 7T & A & # 5,400,000 7T
(ZZE—=4F: AR#¥ 24,500,000t Z AR
4,555,000 7T) ©

RITEX

R-ZT—ME+-A=+—08 XEENHR
1TESTHARY2,908,000 T( - T — =4 :
ARM 2,959,000 7T )& T35 F F| R 538 [E &
B WHASENEERRTEROARES
T(ZZT—=F: AR%6,114,0007T) RAE
EETHBAR —2ES(WERNARESE)R
AP EERIR o RITEZ B ITEHE -

HESEAMEEARART —FT-NFFH
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37. PROMISSORY NOTE

At 1 January w—H—H
Promissory note issued BEITENRIE
Interest expenses MBS

Interest payable FERTFE
Exchange alignment ME 5 B
Repayment B%

At 31 December KR+=—A=+—8

On 27 May 2013, Link Excellent Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, issued an unsecured promissory
note with principal value of HK$20,000,000 as a partial
consideration for the acquisition of the business of trading
of garment accessories on behalf of the Company. The
promissory note bears interest at 3.0% per annum and is
payable on 27 May 2014, being the date which is 12 months
after the date of the issue of the note. The fair value of
the promissory note at the date of issue was approximately
RMB15,165,000.

At 31 December 2013, the promissory note was measured
at amortised cost, using effective interest rate of 8.3% per
annum.

37. AFEE

The Group
AEH

2014 2013
—E-—mF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT T ARETT
15,456 —
— 15,165
506 756
(189) (286)
71 (179)
(15,844) —
— 15,456

RZE—=FRA=-F++tH XAFNEE
ff B A &l Link Excellent Limited 37T A & %8
20,000,000 8 T EER AN ERE - AR
RARNRIMER KEEHEBEEBHNIHINRE -
AN EZEIREMNERI 0% L AR -_ZE—
FRAZHEB(AZEERTEHR12@A
EH)EERE ANZEBRREITHHNATEY
A AR 15,165,000 7T °

RZE—Z=ZF+A=+—H  ANREEH
EFRFH K8 3% B HKAFTE -
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38. DEFERRED TAXATION 38. ELERKIE
The Group AEE
The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities REBRAFERBEFERANEERLTH
recognised and movements thereon during the current and BEERBEREZSHNT :
prior years:
Amortisation tax on
of prepaid Decelerated
land lease tax
payments depreciation Total
L
HEFE#E  BEBEFE a5t
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREFTT AEREFTT AREFT
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=F—H—H 35 1,001 1,036
Credit to profit or loss for the year i AEEEZ — 211 211
At 31 December 2013 R-ZZE—=F
and 1 January 2014 +=-A=+—8K
—ET-mFE—AF—H 35 1,212 1,247
Credit to profit or loss for the year 3t AFEIER = — —
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—MF
+=HA=+—H 35 1,212 1,247

AT RphiR & BB & M 1 RO IRE L IR 45

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

consolidated statement of financial position purposes: RO
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E2-IOF —T—=f
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥TF T ARET T
BEERIAEE 1,247 1,247

B 7 A fE 4 8
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39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

39. WhE

On 26 March 2013, Joystar (BVI) Auto Inter-parts (a)
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an agreement with independent third
parties to acquire 100% of the entire issued share
capital of Sinogate Energy Group and their identifiable
asset and liabilities, for a total contracted consideration
of HK$28,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB22,341,000). The aggregate amount of goodwill
arising as a result of the acquisition is approximately
RMB21,847,000. The acquisition was completed on 21

May 2013.

Net assets acquired:

Property, plant and equipment

Inventories

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Cash and bank balances

Trade payables

Accrual and other payables

Goodwill

Total consideration at fair value
satisfied by:
Cash and bank balances

Net cash inflow arising on acquisition:
Cash and bank balances acquired
Cash paid for acquisition

PR B R
W - BE RRE

i

BAHE - Be R
4 M E

W4 RRTES
A E 5508

FE At R AR A 2

o
)

BEAFEGENARE
TR EAZA
Re RIRTTHER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Bt A 7]
RZE—=F=A=1+"H ' AREHE
&HEB A7l Joystar (BVI) Auto Inter-parts
Limited B3B3 55 = 7 7] S2 13 - IA#E A
#91X 1528,000,000/ 8 T(FHHER O AR
£ 22,341,000 7T ) W Bl R Bt BE R 52 B 2 6
BEITIRAN100% M EAT#BIEE R
BE - WEEEANBBBENAARE
21,847,0007C « ZWHEER T —=4F
AAZ+—HTEK

Acquiree’s carrying
amount and fair value
WRBHTHWEREAERDTEE
RMB’000

ARMEFT

4
5,785

16,662
23,201
(12,331)
(32,827)

494
21,847

22,341

22,341

BHEEENRERAEHE

BB S RIRITAER
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39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (cContinued)
(a)

(Continued)

Sinogate Energy Group was acquired so as to continue
the expansion of the Group’s rubber trading business.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately
RMB4,000 have been excluded from the consideration
transferred and have been recognised as an expense
during the year ended 31 December 2013.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Sinogate Energy
Group because the cost of the combination included
a control premium. In addition, the consideration
paid for the combination effectively included amounts
in relation to the benefits of expected synergies,
revenue growth, future market development and the
assembled workforce of Sinogate Energy Group. These
benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill
because they do not meet the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets. None of the goodwill
arising on the acquisition is expected to be deductible
for tax purpose.

Included in the profit for the year ended 31 December
2013 is approximately RMB771,000 and revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2013 is approximately
RMB313,576,000 attributable to the additional business
generated by Sinogate Energy Group.

Had the business combination been effected on
1 January 2013, the revenue of the Group would
have been approximately RMB681,284,000, and the
profit for the year would have been approximately
RMB43,359,000. The pro forma financial information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily
an indication of revenue and results of the Group that
actually would have been completed on 1 January 2013
is it intended to be a projection of future profits.

39. WEBMHBLQE(#)

(a)

(%)

WP REE e AR EERASE
MIRBEERT -

BB B A A ) A R ¥ 4,000 T3
TERERAEBERERN  YEREBEEZ
E—=F+-_A=+—BHILLFE®ERR
FX °

WP EREEELNAEIIREGH
XA BB E © teoh - A G AT
MREER LeRETEEREENE
W FRUE - WS R - REAMHEE
REBRTARHEROMEERNSHE
& E N R R B FRERR - TR
AT RS BllE3iA=¥-3: 0k
RITE - FHURBEENEAERTER
RBHEAR -

BE-ZE—=F+-A=+—BILFE
955 I B2 15 P B e R SR B P A5 SR BB N
EEENHARK 771,000 MEE
—E-=F+-A=t+—BIFENK
mEIEPH A RE BT REBINETS FE
1 #) AR #E 313,576,000 7T °

MEBAMHR _ZE—=4—A—8H
£ AEBHBABHNAEARE
681,284,000 7T & F E s Al dF 40 A
# 43,359,000 7T ° %5 M I5 B RHE
AA% T ARRAEER-T—=F
— A — BEARKEASERERSHWA KR
& - BRAAR I RAERRR G
F o

T-mEEH
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39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. WRHE AR #)

(b) On 15 May 2013, the Company entered into an by R-ZZE—=FFAA+HB AR AHE
agreement with independent third parties to acquire BUE=ZFIUBHE RBEHOR
100% of the entire issued share capital of Brilliant f842,000,0007% JL(48 & B 49 A R ¥
Summit and its identifiable asset and liabilities, for 32,150,0007T ) M FE 12 Il 2 &8 B B 17

3 A o E A 3 B

a total contracted consideration of HK$42,000,000 HH%Z'KE’HOO%M&“EJ”%}D]JﬁE&E

(equivalent to approximately RMB32,150,000). The - BBEENEREBORARS
a 2 e 29,252,0007T ° ZWBER —E—=4

aggregate amount of goodwill arising as a result of AH-++ A=A

the acquisition is approximately RMB29,252,000. The

acquisition was completed on 27 May 2013.

Acquiree’s carrying
amount and fair value

HUWBEAFNREEERLQFE
RMB"000
ARBEFT
Net assets acquired: B REE
Trade receivables (Note) FEW B B RIE (KT L) 7,559
Prepayments, deposits and other TETRIE ~ Re K H A fE YR IE
receivables 856
Cash and bank balances Re MIRITHE S 755
Bank borrowings RITIER (1,167)
Trade payables e E 5 FIE (4,668)
Accruals and other payables EErERMEMEN KA (27)
Tax payables S HIR (410)
2,898
Goodwill [EES 29,252
32,150
Total consideration at fair value BATEFENERE -
satisfied by: UTSEXZM
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHE S 6,074
Consideration shares KRB 10,911
Promissory note ZENES 15,165
32,150

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEELNRS R HIEE
Cash and bank balances acquired BUEE /IR € RIRTT4ERR
Cash paid for acquisition HUEL A 2RE

China Automo
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39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(b)

(Continued)

Brilliant Summit was acquired so as to diversity its
existing business in order to reduce business risk.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately
RMB83,000 have been excluded from the consideration
transferred and have been recognised as an expense
during the year ended 31 December 2013.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Brilliant Summit
because the cost of the combination included a
control premium. In addition, the consideration paid
for the combination effectively included amounts in
relation to the benefits of expected synergies, revenue
growth, future market development and the assembled
workforce of Brilliant Summit. These benefits are not
recognised separately from goodwill because they
do not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable
intangible assets. None of the goodwill arising on
the acquisition is expected to be deductible for tax
purpose.

Included in the profit for the year ended 31 December
2013 is approximately RMB1,521,000, and revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2013 is approximately
RMB20,923,000 attributable to the additional business
gene rated by Brilliant Summit.

Had the business combination been effected on
1 January 2013, the revenue of the Group would
have been approximately RMB557,881,000, and the
profit for the year would have been approximately
RMB43,759,000. The pro forma financial information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily
an indication of revenue and results of the Group that
actually would have been completed on 1 January 2013
is it intended to be a projection of future profits.

39. WEBMHBLQE(#)

(b)

(%)

WEER)IISE e ERRARAER 1t
R KRS R o

U EE A BRI R A 49 A R 83,000 7T
TEERFEZRREN  YEREBEEZ
T-—ZF+ A=+ BLFEERAE
X o

W) SEEENEEIDEAR FRA
BIEERCRE - o AR
EER EEEER) KB TERRR M
fE - WERE - REMBERRKET
AFIEROFEBRHNEHE - ZFME
WEBHEDFRAER - TTHENZFNE
Y AHEABBELEENERRE
BHRBELNBER TSR /RHE
B o

BE_ZT—=6+_A=+—HILFE
B R B IE IR )| &2 B P A5 SR BB HN SE TS FE
THEH AR # 1,521,000 MEE =
T—=F+-_A=+—HBLFENKF
BIER) & B T R EEINEBEGERNL
AFE#20,923,0007T °

WEBKEHR _E—=F—H—8
EH AEBHBABNAEARE
557,881,000 Tt X FE MBI ABAR
# 43,759,000 7T ° %5 M5 B RHEH
AR WIARTASER-T—=F
— A — BEARKEASEREREHWA KR
X4E - BRAAR TR ERRR RS
F o

T-mEEH
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40. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases within fall due as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M RR M (H)

40. KEHERIE

AEEFEBRBA
RBEHR  AEEZTAIRHEEEHEEET
I HAME fE R R AR R E SRR ASENT ¢

The Group
TEE

2014 2013
—E-OF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARBTF T
Within one year —F R 1,077 707
In the second to fifth years inclusive FE_ZFRF(REERMF) 1,096 1,569
2,173 2,276

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for its warehouse, factory and office premises. Leases
are negotiated for a range from 1 to 4 years (2013: 1 to
4 years) and rentals are fixed over the lease terms and do
not include contingent rentals. The Group does not have an
option to purchase the leased asset at the expiry of the lease
period.

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitment for future minimum lease receivables under
non-cancellable leases within fall due as follows:

REMREFREAEEREE THERHKAE
MERNOEE  HHEZE/NF—EWF
(ZF—=%F —ZE20F)  mESRBEEGER
BEE  TeRIAEE  FAEELENEHE
mEEENEEE CREE -

AEEEDBLHBEA
RNBEHR  AEEZTAIRHEECEHEEET
I B fE R R R R R R S AR T ¢

2014 2013
—E-OF —=—=
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T R ARBTT
Within 1 year —F QR 190 —
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EERF(BEEREMSE) 360

Operating lease r
the Group for i
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41.

42.

43.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

41. EREE

R|EHRR - ARBEOEARAZNT :

The Group
rEH
2014 2013
—B-NmE It
RMB’000 RMB"000
AR%TR AREFT
Acquisition of prepaid land lease payments U BB TE A £ A & 5B
Contracted but not provided for EET A EREE == 13,347
Property, plant and equipment ME  BEREE
Contracted but not provided for EEESEES - . 2,861
— 16,208
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 42. FREE

At 31 December 2014, the Group and the Company did not
have any significant contingent liabilities (2013: Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2014, certain property, plant and equipment
(Note 18), investment property (Note 19), prepaid land lease
payments (Note 20) and bank deposit (Note 28) of the Group
were pledged as collateral for secured banking facilities
granted to the Group.

At 31 December 2013, certain property, plant and equipment
(Note 18), prepaid land lease payments (Note 20) and bank
deposit (Note 28) of the Group were pledged as collateral
for secured bank loans granted to the Group.

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Company did not
pledge any assets at the end of the reporting period.

43.

RZB-—NF+-A=+—H TxEERAEAR
AYEBEMNEARABE( =T —=F : §) -

BEEEH
R-ZE—ME+-_A=+—8 KXEBET
W - BB REEME18) - BEWE(MisF
19) ~ B i EFRIE (M 5E 20) RIRITIER
(328 EEMIEAR S BER B EMRT
BhE 2R o

RZZE—Z=F+A=+—H ~EBETY
¥ BERZRE(ME18) BNLHMAER
TR (P 5E20) RARTTIE R (P £ 28) 2B E R
AEBEEREEPRTER 2 EIRGR -

R-E—mNER-—T—=F+-_A=+—8
AN TN ER RS BRI EFEE -
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44,

45.

China Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme
are calculated at 5% of the salaries and wages subject to
a monthly maximum amount of contribution of HK$1,500
(HK$1,250 prior to 1 June 2014) per employee and vest fully
with employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary established in the
PRC are members of a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. This subsidiary is required
to contribute certain percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and wages to the central pension scheme to fund
the retirement benefits. The local municipal government
undertakes to assume the retirement benefits obligations of
all existing and future retired employees of this subsidiary.
The only obligation of this subsidiary with respect to the
central pension scheme is to meet the required contributions
under the scheme.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY a45.
TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions and balances as disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following material transaction with
related parties during the year.
(a) Compensation of key management
personnel
Compensation for key management personnel,
including amount paid to the Company’s directors and
the senior executive is as follows:
Salaries and other short-term benefits e RAEMRE RN
Employer contribution to pension scheme R{K& 5T EIE = itk

44. EAREFRFE

AEBRBEESBHERRESTEEH AT S
FiEEEREEBR AT ABSEEI([&E
SETEl]) - AEBAIRBES B 2 HRTIIRR
BEEHESRIEZS%TE  BHREETAH
RKERAE1,5008 T(R=_F—WNF/A—H
A1 A1,250%870) - E B MARES S/ /EL#
H& - BRBEEMA °

R BRI AREMB AR ZEE R T
BREE 2 REAREFHEIKE - ZMEAR
AREBERFENTIEZETAA LT R
BRAREFEIHR - (ERERIREHNZES - 77
MBRAEAEZNB AR ARA RARE
REE ZRARBRELE - ZMBRATRPRR
REeFTEzHE—BEERRBEFEELMFHR

Eo
oA °

EXBRERRS

Brize M MR A E MM T R B S kAR
S FRAREEEEBESITENTERR
5 e

(a) EREBABZFHME

IRERABZAE  BRENARAR
BEERSBATABRSBEMAT :

2014 2013
—E2-mE —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBTT
1,204 1,194

66 64
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46.

47.

48.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

On 27 May 2013, the Company acquired 100% of the entire
issued share capital of Brilliant Summit for a total contracted
consideration of HK$42,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB32,150,000). The consideration of approximately
RMB10,911,000 and RMB15,165,000 were satisfied by issue
of the Company’s ordinary shares and promissory note
issued by Link Excellent Limited on behalf of the Company
respectively.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There has not been significant events took place subsequent
to 31 December 2014.

AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March
2015.

46.

47.

48.

FERERS
RZFE—=FRA=Z+tH XAENEE
# R (B A 42,000,000 T(HERHARE
32,150,000 70 ) W fE B )I| 2= 20 B B TR A B
100% ° RRIBH AR 10,911,000 TR AR
15,165,000 7T Jh S Rl E R T A AR E @R
R Link Excellent Limited {XRANA 73174
BEIA -

BREMREE
RZZE—NFEF+_A=+—H#%E  HERLES
REH e

RETIRGEMBERE

BEVBBRREN _ZE-AF=A=+HEE
FEMAERBETIE -




SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MBENBE

The following is a summary of the published results and of the LATAKREEIR TIIMTMESEERE Y O TIRE
assets and liabilities of the Group prepared on the bases set out in  FHEENABGEHE :
the note below:

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—E-TF 2% ZT-f —T-= —EF-mF
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT ARBTT ARBFTT ARETT AR%¥Tr

Revenue A 123,090 156,476 166,906 543,377 357,251
Gross profit EF 29,316 42,006 28,406 50,812 50,138
Profit before tax BB BDE R 18,480 22,475 12,295 47,626 29,510
Profit for the year NARHEE AEG

attributable to owners FER A

of the Company 14,497 18,851 10,798 43,044 25,880
Basic earnings per share  &REKRZEF

(RMB cents) (AR¥E5) 8.9 9.1 2.0 3.8 2.1

As at 31 December
R+=A=+-—H
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—T—TF —ZT——F ZT—=F ZT—=F =—B-WF
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARETFT ARETRT AR®TRT AR%®TR

Non-current assets IERBEE 36,782 46,097 44,099 105,928 111,316
Current assets RENEE 98,862 109,033 196,757 221,725 296,419
Current liabilities REARE 49,085 42,556 52,862 87,930 70,125
Non-current liabilities EREBEE — — — — 4,400

Net assets FEE 86,350 112,574 187,994 239,723 333,120




*

*
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